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 Jordan Jones 
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 Financial Specialist 

 

Public Attendees (not for an agenda item): 
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TUESDAY, MARCH 2, 2021, 9:00 A.M. 

-oOo- 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Good morning, and 

welcome to the Private Investigators Licensing Board.  

I'd like to call the meeting to order. 

  Kevin, or Director Ingram, would you please 

conduct roll call. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, thank you.  So Board Member 

Tammy Nixon, Acting Chair?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Rick Brown? 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Katherine Cortez? 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Robert Gronauer? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Additionally, we have with 

us this morning our legal counsel, Mr. Michael Detmer; 

Board staff:  Lori Irizarry, Chief of Operations; 

Vincent Saladino, Supervisory Investigator; Shelly 

Lancaster, Investigator and Licensing Specialist; Zach 

Swarthout, Investigator and Auditor.  And in the 

northern office we have Investigator Jordan Jones and 

our Financial Specialist, Mary Klemme.  Today with us as 

our court reporter is Shannon Taylor.  
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 If there's someone typing right now, could you 

please place your microphone on mute.  Thank you.  

 We do have a quorum. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you. 

  So we'll go ahead and open to public comment.  

This is the section, this is the time of the meeting 

that if we have any public comments.  Members of the 

general public may comment on matters appearing on the 

agenda and may bring up matters not appearing on the 

agenda to the attention of the Board.  The Board may 

discuss the matters not appearing on the agenda but may 

not act on the matters at this meeting.  If the Board 

desires, the matters may be placed into the future 

agenda for action.  

 At this time, are there any public comments 

from the south?  

 Okay.  Any public comments from the north?  

 Okay.  So, I guess, there's no public comments 

at this time.  

 Director Ingram, would you please, would you 

and your team members please go over announcements and 

reports.  

  MR. INGRAM:  The first announcement I'd like to 

make is we're still having a huge concern with 

fingerprint results, the delay.  Right now, we were 
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estimating 12 to 13 weeks on fingerprint results coming 

in from the criminal repository.  As of yesterday, we 

had some 16 weeks out, so.   

  So we're kind of at a loss.  There's a few 

individuals on the agenda today that we may or may not 

have fingerprints for.  As soon as we pick up this 

morning's mail, we'll know more.   

  But that is a huge concern.  I've reached out 

to the Director of DPS, George Togliatti, to see if 

there's something that we can do as an agency to help 

expedite the process.  And I don't have an update, 

again, at this time.  

  (There was a discussion with the Reporter 

regarding everyone speaking up during the meeting.)   

  MR. INGRAM:  So, in addition to that, our 

financial report, as provided to the Board, you know, if 

you have any question on the financial report, I'd be 

happy to answer them.  I will tell you that for the 

first time in the eight years I've been here, we're 

running about just over five months of financials in our 

reserves.  By statute, all boards and commissions are 

supposed to run at about six months.  Most are not able 

to do that.  And during the LCB audit in 2019, we were 

running about three and a half months.  So we're doing 

pretty well on building our reserves in the statutory 
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requirements.  And I feel pretty confident that that 

will continue to build. 

  At this time, I'd like to ask Lori Irizarry, 

our Chief of Operations, to go over our statistics.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Hi, good morning.  I'm going to 

go over the statistics that are on the website.  If you 

go to our website, click on the March 2nd Board meeting 

on attachments.  This is what I'm going to speak about, 

and each of you have one here today.   

  So the March Board meeting is where I compare 

the quarter in the past as well as the years past.  So 

for last quarter, on the first page, page 1 of 3, first 

initially, at this past Board meeting, we had 48 people 

that had applied.  Out of the 48, 38 of them are on the 

agenda today.  Five were postponed, and five were 

withdrawn.  The main reason for the postponements were 

they didn't meet the qualifications, or the application 

was incomplete.  So that's why they're not before you 

today at the Board hearing.  

 Right below that, work card applications.  So 

this past quarter there was 1,814 work cards processed 

from December 1st until yesterday.  187 of those are 

still pending.  The main reason for the pending is 

because we're still missing information from the 

individual.  Fingerprints, photo ID, something is 
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missing from their application that we can't get them a 

provisional work card.  And right now, the investigators 

are approximately one week out on reviewing to make 

people provisional.  

 Like Kevin had spoke about, the criminal 

repository is taking approximately 10 to 12 weeks.  So 

that has extended three weeks from the last time I gave 

you statistics.  So this time, there's 1,243 people 

still in provisional, and that's from the 1,814.  So 

only about 600 people in the last quarter were we able 

to make active, because many fingerprints are still 

missing.  To compare this to the last quarter 

statistics, that was only a decrease of about 270 work 

cards total.  So it wasn't a big number since the last 

quarter.  

 On the next page, this is a breakdown of the 

complaints and investigations.  These are complaints and 

investigations that we have received or opened up from 

December 2020 to yesterday.  The majority of them, 

you'll see, are in the private patrolman section, a 

total of 12, ranging anywhere from complaints or 

investigations opened up regarding professionalism, 

unlicensed activity, people working, individuals, 

without an active work card.  There were no complaints 

or investigations opened up for polygraph, process 
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server or CFI.  

 The next category that was most investigated 

were work cards.  We received complaints regarding 

people that were violating Chapter 648, so individuals 

working without a proper work card, not having their 

firearms up-to-date, things like that.  There's a total 

of six work card investigations that we had opened up.  

 Out of all the investigations, right now, 

there's only about nine pending.  So the majority of 

them have been closed, an audit has been started, or a 

citation has been issued.  

 The third page, this is a breakdown of the 

violations that were issued to license holders.  So 

about, there has been a total of five individual 

licensees that received fines, for a total dollar amount 

of $1,275, which $1,100 of that has been paid.  The 

majority of that dollar amount came from people working 

without their firearms qualifications up-to-date.  There 

are two individuals, which was a total of $1,000.  That 

fine has been paid and has been rectified.  They have 

either a conflict with their firearms requalifications 

or they were removed from their armed post.  

 Right below that is unlicensed activity.  There 

were four citations issued for unlicensed activity and 

one cease and desist which did not accrue a dollar 
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amount.  All four citations were issued to a private 

patrolman company or companies.  Two of them were for 

first-time offenders, which holds a dollar amount of 

$2,500.  One was for a second-time offender, which was a 

$5,000 citation.  And one was with a third-time 

offender, which was a $10,000 citation.  Which is a 

total of $20,000.  Only $5,000 of that has been paid.  

The other $15,000 is either because it's pending, they 

still have 30 days to appeal the decision or it will be 

an appealed citation.  

 Now, the next page talks about 2020 as a whole.  

So, as we know, 2020 was much different than in years 

past.  But last year, there were four, I'm sorry, 344 

individuals that had applied to get a license.  279 of 

those were agendized and placed on the Board.  So the 

Board was able to hear 279 of those.  There were 9,966 

work cards that we received.  There were a total of 25 

unlicensed activity citations issued, for a dollar 

amount of $81,250.  That does not include cease and 

desist or citations which were possibly waived.   

 And violations issued to licensees, the dollar 

amount there, I do apologize, is incorrect.  That was 

last year's statistics.  But all the stats are correct.  

So if you add them all up together, there were 283 

individual notice of violations issued to licensees, for 
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a dollar amount of $14,325.  The majority of the 

citations were issued for people not properly listed on 

the roster, which is a $25 amount, which is a total of 

$5,575.  

 Right below that is a comparison of 2018, 2019 

and 2020.  So I just broke it down by Board hearings, 

every time that someone went before you at a Board 

hearing.  If you notice, June of 2020 is left blank 

because we didn't have a June 2020 Board hearing.  It 

was moved to September.  That's why the September number 

is so large, of 108 in September of 2020.  But if you 

look, for 2019 to 2020, it's only an additional four 

people that we took on in 2020.  So it wasn't really 

that much of an increase.  For 2020, being such a unique 

year, that's pretty good, individuals before the Board 

was pretty similar to the year before.  

 On the next page, which is the last page, work 

cards.  So this is where we're going to notice the 

biggest difference, because in 2018 we had 9,800 work 

cards that had applied.  2019, 11,021.  And 2020, that 

number is very similar to 2018, which is 9,966 

individuals.  That is a little over 10 percent decrease.  

2020 was a little over 10 percent decrease than 2019.  

 As you know, a lot of events didn't take place 

last year.  So EDC didn't happen.  Allegiant Stadium was 
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halted.  Life is Beautiful, that usually happens, was 

another event that we do a lot of work cards for, in  

September, was cancelled.  

 If you look at the graph below, I broke it down 

by months.  The two biggest months are going to be 

April.  April, usually ever year, we do over a thousand 

work cards.  Last year we did -- I'm sorry.  2019, we 

did almost 1,600 work cards.  But in 2020, we did less 

than 600.  And in June.  June also was a huge influx.  

We realized the influx was because Allegiant Stadium was 

still planning on doing events, so we had a lot of 

individuals applying for Allegiant Stadium.  So that's 

why.  We may have not had as many as April, but June it 

picked back up.  And we're actually very similar to 

2018.  If you compare month by month, between '18 and 

2020, it's very similar.  

 And the last statistic here is unlicensed 

activity between the years.  In 2020, we had gone down 

about 37 percent in fines from the year past and 

44 percent decrease in citations.  So in 2019, we've had 

45 citations.  In 2020, we've only had 25.  Not as many 

individuals working would be the reason why there's not 

as much activity going on.  But we're still having 

increase in -- I'm sorry.  We're still having unlicensed 

activity, so we're still issuing the fines and retaining 
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the citations.  It's just a decrease in 2019.  Most of 

our stats, I was noticing, are very similar to 2018, a 

more average year of what we normally do.  

 That's all I have.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

questions?  

 Okay.  This section, we will move into -- 

Director Ingram, do you need to do roll call for the 

attendees?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Item number 4, we need to approve 

the transcription first.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Oh, I'm sorry.  

Okay.  So item number 4, we need to approve the 

transcripts for the last meeting.   

  So, Board, are there any questions or concerns 

for the actual transcripts?  That would be for the 

December 8th, 2020.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Madam Chair. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Kevin Ingram, for the record.  We 

did find an error on page 2, which was just the 

individuals that were in attendance.  I spoke with 

Shannon Taylor, and she's already corrected that to show 

that Shelly Lancaster was, in fact, present for that 

meeting, and that Paul Maxwell was, in fact, absent.  
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And that correction has been made.  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  With that being 

said, I'll move for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I'd motion to approve with the amendment.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  

Do we have a second?   

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  

Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All in favor?  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  MR. INGRAM:  Item 5.  Anyone that's currently 

on the call, I'm going to ask that at this time you be 

sworn in.  I do want to remind everybody, now that we're 

15 minutes into the meeting, those of you that are on 

the call, please leave your phones on mute until called 

upon.  And try to speak slowly and clearly so that our 

court reporter can pick up your testimony when you're 

speaking to the Board.  Once you're done speaking, I 

would ask that you mute your phones again.  And at the 

first time that you speak, if you will speak your full 

name, and then, when replying again, just state your 

last name, so we can get that clear on the transcript.  

 Mr. Detmer, would you like to swear everyone in 

for us, please.  
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 MR. DETMER:  It would be my pleasure.  Mike 

Detmer, for the record. 

 For any and all those who are going to testify, 

if you could please raise your right hand.  Do you 

hereby swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole 

truth, and nothing but the truth?  

 (Applicants and witnesses present were 

sworn/affirmed.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So a matter of 

housekeeping, while your phones are muted, when you are 

called, could you please announce your name and then 

note that you understand that you're under oath.  Thank 

you.  

  Okay.  So I would like to call, or entertain a 

motion for a block vote.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Madam Chair. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes. 

  MR. INGRAM:  If I could, could I go ahead and 

take roll call of the individuals that should be on the 

call with us? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Kevin Ingram, for the record.  As I call your 

name, just go ahead and respond that you're present.  

And then, again, why don't you go ahead and let us know 
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that you understand you are under oath.   

 Humberto Bobadillo-Tellez?  

  MR. BOBADILLO:  Yes, this is Umberto Bobadillo.  

  MR. INGRAM:  And you understand you're under 

oath?  

  MR. BOBADILLO:  Yes, I am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  

  Jeffrey Cooley? 

  MR. COOLEY:  Yes, I'm here, and I understand 

I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  Nathan Morgenstein?  

  MR. MORGENSTEIN:  This is Nathan Morgenstein.  

And, yes, I am testifying under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Mark Hoyt?  

  MR. HOYT:  This is Mark Hoyt, and I understand 

I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  Savannah Miele?  Savannah Miele?  Savannah, if 

you're on the phone, you may be on mute.  

 Joshua Healea?  

  MR. HEALEA:  Joshua Healea, present, and I 

understand I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Glen Cozart?  
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  MR. COZART:  I'm Glen Cozart.  I am present, 

and I understand I'm under oath.  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Carl Toth? 

 MR. TOTH:  This is Carl Toth, and I understand 

I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Carl.  

  Joseph Bause?   

  JUAN:  Hi.  My name's Juan.  How are you doing? 

  MR. INGRAM:  Joseph Bause? 

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  I'm doing well, thank you.  

How can we help you? 

  MR. BAUSE:  Joseph Bause.  I understand I'm 

under oath. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  Sean Wilson?  

  MR. WILSON:  This is Sean Wilson.  I understand 

I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Gale Craythorn?  

  MR. CRAYTHORN:  This is Gale Craythorn.  I 

understand that I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  Mitchel Leavitt?  

  MR. LEAVITT:  This is Mitchel Leavitt.  I 
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understand that I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Mark Malone?  

  MR. MALONE:  This is Mark Malone.  I understand 

I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  John Reilly?  

  MR. REILLY:  This is John Reilly.  I understand 

I am under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Joel Logan?   

 MR. LOGAN:  This is Joel Logan, and I 

understand I'm under oath.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  And one more time, Savannah 

Miele?  

 Okay.  Make note of that, and if she logs in a 

little later, make sure before we take it up. 

 Thank you, ma'am. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So now I'll go ahead 

and entertain a motion for a block vote.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we pass --   

  MR. DETMER:  I'm sorry.  Mike Detmer, for the 

record.  I'm sorry to now to interject.  Before the 

motion is made and entertained, I just wanted to clarify 
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if there were any items among the block vote that had to 

be removed prior to the motion being approved for the 

block.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Got it.  Okay.  Yes.  

I have two that I need to remove.  The first one is 

number 10.  The second one is number 13.  While I don't 

know the individuals, they are acting on the part, on 

behalf of Allied Universal.  And so I need to remove 

myself.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I approve that we pass the consent items minus 

numbers 10 and 13.  

  MR. INGRAM:  For clarification, that would be 

items number 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 14 and 15.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I will second the motion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All in favor, say 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All opposed?  

 Okay.  The block vote passes unanimously.  

 To number 10, do I have a motion on number 10? 

 MR. INGRAM:  And 13. 
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 ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  And 13?  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we approve the items 10 and 13.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I second the motion.  I mean I second to 

approve.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So I have a motion.  

I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All opposed?  Or, I 

abstain.  Board Member Nixon abstains.  

  MR. DETMER:  Chair, does that motion pass?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Oh.  The motion 

passes.  Thank you.  

 Okay.  So then, I guess, did we want to 

announce that those folks, in case they were on the 

line, don't need to stay?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yeah, we can.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. INGRAM:  So anyone on the call right now 

for agenda items 7 through 15, you do not have to stay 

on the phone if you do not wish.  However, you're 

welcome to go ahead and listen in to the rest of the 
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meeting. 

  Madam Chair, if I could just make one more 

announcement that I provide during the role call.   

  Do we have any public members on the call?  If 

we do, if you could identify yourselves, please?  

Members of the public.  

  MR. FLORENCE:  Douglas Florence.  

  MR. INGRAM:  I'm sorry.  Who? 

  MR. FLORENCE:  Douglas Florence. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Tom.   

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Douglas. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Oh, Douglas Florence? 

  MR. FLORENCE:  Yes, sir.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thanks, Douglas.  

  MR. FLORENCE:  Have a good day.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Do we have any other public on the 

line with us today?  

  MR. GIRARD:  Chair, are you asking for a 

particular agenda item or in general?  

  MR. INGRAM:  No, just in general, do we have 

anybody in the public that's attending the meeting today 

just to listen in? 

  MR. GIRARD:  Yeah.  Jon Girard, Elite 

Investigations.  873 is my license number.  And I've 

been sworn in.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  Thanks, Jon.   

  MR. TAYLOR:  John Taylor, Allied Consulting & 

Security, 2050, have been sworn in.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Just -- now, are you on the 

agenda?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  John Taylor?  Yeah, item number 

10.  I didn't quite understand.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  I'm just calling for 

members of the public that are listening in to our 

meeting right now.  Besides Mr. Douglas Florence and 

Mr. Jon Girard.  Are there other members of the public 

not on the agenda?  

 MR. ALVAREZ:  Good morning.  John Alvarez with 

Protective Force International, 2687.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, John.  

 Any other members of the public?  

  MS. KNIGHT:  Jennifer Knight with True 

Investigations, license number 1960.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Jennifer.  

 Any other members of the public?  

  MR. FLORENCE:  Kevin, this is Douglas again.  I 

didn't list that I'm a license in abeyance, 1672.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Last call for members of the public.  

  MR. ZANE:  Mark Zane.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Mark.  

 Anyone else?  

 Thank you, Madam Chair.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So this moves 

us to agenda item number 16.  Mr. Humberto Bobadilla?  

  MR. BOBADILLA:  Yes, here I am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  So 

could you please tell us a little bit with yourself and 

what you're in front of the Board for.  

  MR. BOBADILLA:  I'm sorry.  I couldn't hear 

you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Could you tell us a 

little bit about yourself and why you're in front of the 

Board.  

  MR. BOBADILLA:  Okay.  I am a dog trainer.  I 

have my own company.  And I am in front of the Board 

because I want to change the name of my business.  The 

business used to be Nuevo Pacto, LLC.  And I want to 

change it to Las Vegas K9 Training LLC.   

  Unfortunately, I didn't notify PILB about the 

change, and I was running the business like as Las Vegas 

K9 Training LLC instead of Nuevo Pacto, LLC, without 

notifying you.   

  So then in the audit that I had from you, they 

find out this issue.  So then I took care of it, 
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including Nuevo and all the issues that I have in the 

administration of my business.  And which I took care of 

them.  And now I am requesting the change of the name.  

 I changed the name because it was, the name was 

Nuevo Pacto, LLC in the license, but I was doing 

business as Las Vegas K9 Training.  So it didn't make 

sense for me to keep it like that,  So then I changed 

the LLC for Las Vegas K9 Training LLC just as doing 

business as Las Vegas K9 Training.  So that's why I need 

the change.  That's why I'm here in front of the Board.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

 Board members, are there any questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

This is for the investigator, Investigator Swarthout.  

In here, one of the things on here is that he decided to 

change his name without advising the Board, the PILB.  

The company employed an individual that's not registered 

with our agency.  One at a time.   

  (The Reporter indicated an inability to hear.) 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Investigator Swarthout, 

again, I'll just ask each one of these at a time.  

There's like five different violations.   

  The company employed an individual who is not 

registered with our agency?   

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Investigator Swarthout.  Yes, 
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he did correct that. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  The company had 

no employee records or files?   

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  He has corrected that, and he 

currently had no employees working for him.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll reask the 

question, then.  The company had no employee records or 

files?  

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  So he has corrected that.  He 

currently had no employees working for him.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The company was saying 

one employee on a 1099 as an independent contract even 

though she had a registered work card.  So we don't have 

to worry about that, because he has no employees?  

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  The company was 

not reporting employee wages to the Nevada Employment 

Security Division?  

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Correct.  That has been 

corrected, of course, with no employees working for him.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  I have no 

more questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 
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Brown.  Have the fines all been paid for any citations?  

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Yes, they have.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

further questions?  

 I'll entertain a motion on item number 16.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I'd move that we approve the corporate name 

change from Nuevo Pacto to Las Vegas K9 Training LLC.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

I'll second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  None opposed.  Your 

motion passes unanimously.  Thank you, Mr. Humberto.  

Congratulations.  

  MR. BOBADILLA:  Thank you very much, all of the 

Board members, and have a great day.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  

 So that takes us to item number 17, Jeffrey 

Cooley.  

  MR. INGRAM:  At this time, Madam Chair, we did 
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not receive fingerprints on item number 17, 19, 23.  

They're on the call today and hoping that when we get 

our mail this morning that they have some fingerprints 

in.  So if we could trail items 17, 19 and 23, that will 

give my Board staff time to review the mail this 

morning.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Do we want to 

ask them if they understand?  

  MR. INGRAM:  We've already sent two of them 

out. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Perfect.  

  Okay.  Mr. Cooley, we're going to pass by you 

real quick and move on to Nathan, item number 18, Nathan 

Morgenstein.  

  MR. MORGENSTEIN:  Ma'am, that's Morgenstein.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Morgenstein.  Thank 

you.  So, sir, please tell us why you are here and what 

you plan to do with your license.  

  MR. MORGENSTEIN:  Certainly.  So I'm before the 

Board this morning for a private investigator license 

approval.  I'm a licensed P.I. in California and have 

been since 2009, been on the job since 2003 in Inyo 

County, which is California.  And I intend, I intend on 

getting my license and working as a public defender 

investigator in Elko County, assuming that that's an 
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option available to me at some point.  Otherwise, you 

know, I'll be available to do any sort of private work 

as well.   

  A little background on my -- you know, I've 

been married for 28 years.  I have five children.  I've 

been in Inyo County for almost 30 years now.  Let's see.  

What else?  That's all I can think of for now.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, 

sir.  

 Board, is there any questions for 

Mr. Morgenstein?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  Mr. Morgenstein, I see that there are possible 

outstanding medical bills.  

  MR. MORGENSTEIN:  Yes.  I did speak to 

Investigator Jones about this.  I'm in the process of 

trying to wrap those up, but I regrettably have not 

finalized that just yet.  I know there's about, I want 

to say there's three different ones totaling in the 

neighborhood of six or seven hundred dollars.  There is 

a credit card bill as well that is, has a payment 

arrangement in place.  But those are the only ones I'm 

aware of.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  I have no further 

questions.  Thank you.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Investigator 

Saladino, do we know if he is in a payment arrangement 

with these different debts?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  For the 

Capital One, he did provide the statement showing that 

he's in a payment plan for that one.  The medical bills, 

from what I understand from speaking to him, his wife 

and himself are working out, you know, making sure it 

was -- we're getting the bills and stuff.  And, I guess, 

she had some medical issues.  So they're in the process 

of working those.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any 

other questions?  

 Okay.  If there's no other questions, I'll take 

a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I motion to approve the license that's being 

requested.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Do we have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I will second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All opposed? 

  It passes unanimously.  Congratulations, 

Mr. Morgenstein, and good luck to you.  

  MR. MORGENSTEIN:  Thank you very much, ladies 

and gentlemen.  Have a great day.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Item number 

19 will be trailed till later. 

  Item number 20.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Ms. Miele, are you on the call?  

Savannah Miele?   

  Madam Chair, Ms. Savannah Miele was noticed and 

had confirmed she'd be attending today.  I don't know if 

you want to trail this.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Well, since we're 

trailing the other ones, let's go ahead and trail this 

one until the end.  And if she doesn't show, then.   

  Okay.  Item number 21.  Mr. Joshua Healea?  

  MR. HEALEA:  Present.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sir, please tell us 

a little bit about yourself and what you're planning on 

with your license, please.  

  MR. HEALEA:  Hi, everyone.  Good morning.  

Thank you for considering my application.  I'm going out 

for a canine handler license.  I am a Nevada Category I 

POST-certified officer with Silver State Law Enforcement 
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Academy.  I was also the class sergeant valedictorian.  

I'm currently a first sergeant with IGS, Integrity 

Global Security, for over two years.  I have five 

facilities and over 55 employees.  I have an exemplary 

credit, criminal and work history.  

 And what I want to do with my license is just 

run a canine through IGS.  And our first objective would 

be to, we're doing marijuana detection for theft for 

employees.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

questions for Mr. Healy?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I have a question for Investigator -- Swarthout.  

Sorry.  It's listed that the fingerprints hadn't been 

received.  Have they been received at this time? 

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Investigator Swarthout.  They 

have been received, and they were clear.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sir, you have here 

on October 23rd, the background has determined that you 

were working for IGS as a canine handler, and you were 

doing so without that license.  Can you tell us a little 

bit about that?  

  MR. HEALEA:  Yeah, absolutely.  First, I just 

want to apologize for the mistake that Integrity Global 
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made in reference.  When we first got our canine, the 

Planet 13 director of corporate security, Richard Henry, 

told us it was okay to train the canine on property.  So 

we would bring him in for training only.  But after we 

were informed of that, we did not have the canine on 

property and we completely complied with that.  

 Also, Director Richard Henry did call PILB and 

reached out to them to let them know that there was no 

compensation for the canine or myself or the company 

whatsoever.   

 So, again, I just want to apologize.  And we 

should have contacted you guys to ask if it was okay to 

train the canine on property.  So, again, I apologize.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

 Investigator Swarthout, did we find out whether 

or not that was training, or was he actually working?  

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  I never heard from Richard 

Henry on whether they were receiving compensation or 

anything in regards to that.  

  MR. HEALEA:  And who was that speaking?  I'm 

sorry.  

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Investigator Swarthout.  

  MR. HEALEA:  Okay.  Just, so, be advised that 

Director Richard Henry did reach out, and he actually 
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spoke to Executive Director Kevin Ingram.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Madam Chair, I spoke with 

Mr. Henry, but I do not recall a conversation where he 

said that -- I remember speaking with the director of 

Planet 13, Mr. Henry.  I don't recall having a specific 

conversation about whether the dog was being 

compensated, which really was kind of moot.  When 

Investigator Swarthout went on property, the security 

officer was there with the dog.  And they gave 

Investigator Swarthout a tour of the facility, bringing 

the dog along with them.  So I mean whether the dog was 

in training or not, the perception was that the dog was 

working.  

 Thank you.  

  MR. HEALEA:  Yeah, understood, and that, again, 

that's just what I was told by Mr. Henry.  And that's 

all.  And, again, apologize.  And I was only training, 

and I was never compensated whatsoever.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  And so, Investigator 

Swarthout, it says here, too, that the company was 

advertising canine services on the company Facebook 

page? 

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Yes, they were.  And that has 

been taken down.  

  MR. HEALEA:  Can I comment on that as well?  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sure.  

  MR. HEALEA:  You know, in reference to the 

advertising, I spoke with the owners, Michael Haley and 

Kyle Hardy.  They just stated they were overzealous on 

their post.  And they apologized.  And I apologized as 

well.  They immediately took down the post.  They paid 

the $2,500 fine within three days and apologized.   

  They've held their license with you guys for 

over 10 years and they've never had any violations or 

fines.  So I can assure you that the owners and myself, 

we're rule followers and law enforcement professionals, 

and we're going to continue to follow your rules exactly 

as outlined from here on out.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

 If there's no other questions, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we approve the item as listed.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I'll second the motion to approve the licensing 

request.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion, and 

I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  The motion passes 

unanimously.  Mr. Healea, congratulations, and please 

continue to follow the rules.  

  MR. HEALEA:  Absolutely.  Thank you guys so 

much.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So item number 22, 

Mr. Cozart.  

  MR. COZART:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Please tell 

us a little bit about yourself and what you intend to do 

with the license.  

  MR. COZART:  Good morning, Board members and 

staff.  My name is Glen Cozart.  I understand I'm under 

oath.   

  I currently am a qualified manager, private 

investigator and private patrol operator in California, 

as well as I have a registered, a guard registration in 

California.  I have been approved for global sentry 

reentry program by the Department of Homeland Security.  

And I also currently have an unarmed registered employee 

guard card from PILB.  

 The reason I need a license, not only to follow 

all your rules, is because some of my VIP clients that 

are in California plan to travel to Nevada.  I don't 

plan on doing constant employment in Nevada.  But when I 
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am in the state with my clients, I will personally be 

there as they travel in and out of the state.  

 If you have any questions for me, I'm -- I 

appreciate being in front of you, and I can take them.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

questions for Mr. Cozart?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  This is Board 

Member Gronauer.  Good morning, Mr. Cozart.  

  MR. COZART:  Good morning, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  I see that 

you were employed by the LAPD.  Was that the sheriff's 

office or P.D.? 

  MR. COZART:  L.A. County Sheriff's Department, 

sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  You spent 

13 years there.  

  MR. COZART:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What was your duties in 

LAPD?  

  MR. COZART:  L.A. County Sheriff, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm sorry.  

  MR. COZART:  I did five -- that's okay.  I did 

five years in custody at the Hall of Justice Jail, 

where, and then during that time, I received my 

bachelor's degree from Cal Poly Pomona, while working 
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graveyard shift as the deputy sheriff in custody.  In 

1997, I went out to patrol, and that's where I spent the 

remainder of my career as a -- I got off training in six 

months.  I was promoted to training officer after 18 

months at the station.  And that's where I finished my 

career.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I have the dates as 

June 1st, '82 to March 16th, '94.  That's 12 years, 

almost 12 years.  Why did you leave the LAPD, Sheriff's 

Office?  

  MR. COZART:  I was accused of a crime while I 

was a sworn deputy sheriff, as I was a training officer.  

And I would like to tell the Board members, that was 

about 26 years ago.  And as I sit here today, I've never 

actually been questioned about that.  I was never given 

the opportunity.  I fought as hard as I could for three 

and a half years, with a public defender.  And after 

that time, having another trainee deputy sheriff saying 

that I did something wrong was pretty hard to argue 

against.  But after three and a half years, I was pretty 

spent emotionally, physically and financially.   

  And I was offered a probationary sentence.   And 

during that climate at the time, I don't know how old 

you gentlemen are, and ladies, but it was post Rodney 

King and the riots, and the climate for police officers 
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wasn't that good.  One of the decisions I have to live 

with daily, even after 26 years, is accepting that 

no-contest plea and the probationary sentence and losing 

the best job I ever had.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer again.  I have some difficulties with it, 

because I was a police officer at the same time period 

you're talking about.  And it was tough times.  I get 

that.  I just have some difficulties with short-term.  

And, also, they give you the opportunity to resign, 

then?  

  MR. COZART:  They didn't, I don't know if they 

gave me the opportunity, sir.  That's just what I chose 

to do.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Part of taking 

the plea agreement on this here, all right, what I'm 

getting at, usually in policing, especially in them 

days, it was either we could fire you or you can resign.  

And I was just trying to get to where were you in that, 

or that wasn't part of it?  

  MR. COZART:  That wasn't part of it, sir.  I 

just decided one day to go do that.  I felt like I was 

in a no-win situation no matter how I felt about the 

charges against me.  And after that long period of time, 

I was just going to, trying to close the door, myself 
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personally.  And that's why I chose.  No one ever came 

to me and said, "We're going to fire you."  I'm sure 

they would have, though, sir.  I'm not, I'm not trying 

to imply anything.  But at that time, I decided, well, 

I'm just going to, I'm just going to resign, and I'm 

going to move on, there's nothing I can do.  

 I've never, since that -- you probably have 

more questions, and that's fine.  But since that date, I 

mean it takes a very, very good person to become a 

deputy sheriff.  I am a very good person.  I've never 

been in any other trouble.  But once, there's nothing 

worse than having your credibility questioned.  It's 

very, very hard to regain your integrity.  And that's 

what I've been trying to do over the last 30 years.  

 And my last statement, I guess, in response to 

that would be the same thing I told the Department of 

Homeland Security and California licensing board, BSIS, 

that if I am given a chance, I will never let you down.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Thank you 

for that.  This is still Board Member Gronauer.  If you 

are granted on this appeal, what do you plan on doing 

with it in Nevada?  

  MR. COZART:  The only thing I'm going to be 

doing, sir, is traveling in and out of the state with 

clients, personally.  So I will be -- usually, we call 
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it a security driver.  Obviously, I'm unarmed.  But I've 

been doing this for a long time with the same company.  

They've moved me all the way up to the very top, and 

they put me in charge of CEOs across the nation, foreign 

dignitaries of small children.  I'm trusted with 

everybody.  And that's what I will do.  I just don't 

want to do anything against the rules.  That's why I got 

my work card.  And, periodically, I plan, with some new 

contracts, that, hopefully, are going to go well, I plan 

on traveling to the state for a short period of time, 

maybe two weeks at the most, and then back to 

California.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  No more 

questions from me.  

  MR. COZART:  I appreciate your time, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I have a question for you, sir.  

  MR. COZART:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  The information we have 

shows that you were charged by the Superior Court of 

Los Angeles for perjury.  

  MR. COZART:  Correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Has that conviction 

created a Brady issue for you with California?  

  MR. COZART:  Not that I know of, sir.  The 
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reason I am a licensed private investigator in 

California and have been a private patrol operator and 

guard registrant is because of I obtained my certificate 

of rehabilitation from my local board.   

  And actually, I should have mentioned, my -- 

I've been investigated by the Board of Prison Terms.  

Even though I was never in jail or prison, and I 

received probation, my pardon, I applied for a pardon, 

and my pardon was approved by the Board of Prison Terms 

in California in 2012.  And it's been, every time 

there's a new governor, I have to resubmit.  But my 

pardon sits in the Governor's Office.  But it hasn't 

been signed.  And it's my life goal probably to have my 

pardon signed.   

  But that's where I am today.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you, 

Mr. Cozart.  

  MR. COZART:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  No further questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

 If there's no other questions, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we approve Mr. Cozart's application 
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for a private patrolman license.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Board Member Cortez.  I 

will second the motion for approval.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion, and 

I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All opposed?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No.  This is Gronauer.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  The motion passes 

three to one.  Congratulations, Mr. Cozart.  Please 

don't let us down.  

  MR. COZART:  Thank you very much.  Thank you 

very, very much.  You have no idea how much it means to 

me.  And the one that did oppose, I appreciate your 

point of view, and I'm always open for a face-to-face or 

any other meetings you'd like to have with me, sir.  I 

hope you have all a good day.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  

 So we're trailing item number 23, waiting for 

fingerprints.   

 That'll take us to item number 24, Pono 

Security.  Mr. Bause, are with you us?  

  MR. BAUSE:  Yes, ma'am.  I have been sworn in.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So please tell us a 

little bit about yourself and what you intend to do with 

the license.  

  MR. BAUSE:  I have been in the security 

industry since 2001, both in Georgia, here in Las Vegas.  

Currently, I'm a corporate training manager for S.A.S. 

Services, which provides ground support service for 

airlines.  And, upon approval, I'd become the qualifying 

agent for Pono Security, who is looking to be a new 

security company in the state of Nevada.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Bause, this is Kevin Ingram, 

for the record.  Do you have your phone on speaker 

phone?  

  MR. BAUSE:  I'm on a headset, but I can change 

that, sir.  Hold on one second.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  You're cutting out a 

little bit on us.  

  MR. BAUSE:  Okay.  There you go, sir, I've 

turned it off.  

  MR. INGRAM:  That is much better.  Thank you, 

sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  And I forgot to ask, 

is Mr. Wilson with you as well or on the line?   

  MR. WILSON:  Yes, ma'am, I'm here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  And you're 
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under oath, sir? 

  MR. WILSON:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So, 

Mr. Wilson, what part do you play in this?  

  MR. WILSON:  I'm the owner.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  Are 

there any questions?  

  MR. WILSON:  Any questions that we have, ma'am?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  No, sir, for the 

Board.  Sorry.  

  MR. WILSON:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  If there's no 

questions from the Board, I do have a question.  

Mr. Bause, it seems here that you have, you know, a 

Chapter 13 and then federal charge-offs.  Have all of 

those been taken care of and the paperwork been provided 

to Mr. Maxwell?  

  MR. BAUSE:  Yes, ma'am.  All the paperwork was 

provided to Investigator Maxwell.  And for my 

charge-offs, I am currently in an agreement with 

Rockwell Industries as a payment plan.  And I am 

26 percent complete with paying back all the creditors.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Fantastic.  

Thank you. 

  And then, Mr. Wilson, I see the same here.  You 
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have a couple of tax liens here.  Have those been taken 

care of, and has the paperwork been provided to 

Investigator Maxwell?  

  MR. WILSON:  Yes, ma'am.  They have been taken 

care of.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any 

other questions?  

 Okay.  If there's no other questions, I will 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I am motioning that we grant Mr. Bause for an 

individual private patrolman license.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Do we need the --  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  I'm sorry.  We are also 

going, motioning to also approve Sean G. Wilson as the 

member.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Or do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Congratulations, 

gentlemen.  It passed.  Congratulations.  Have a great 
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day.  

  MR. BAUSE:  Thank you ma'am. 

  MR. WILSON:  I have one quick question.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sure.  

  MR. WILSON:  Can you give me an idea of how 

long it'll be before we can start doing business?  We 

have quite a few calls coming in in regards.  

  MS. LANCASTER:  Investigator Lancaster.  I will 

email you tomorrow with the next steps to obtain your 

license.  

  MR. WILSON:  Okay.  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. WILSON:  Thank you all.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Next, agenda 

item number 25.  Is Gale Craythorn, are you on the line?  

  MR. CRAYTHORN:  This is Gale Craythorn.  I have 

been sworn. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir. 

  MR. CRAYTHORN:  And I am under oath.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

Please tell us a little bit about yourself and what you 

intend to do with your license.  

  MR. CRAYTHORN:  Yes, ma'am.  I am a 20-year 

veteran of the United States Air Force serving in the 

law enforcement canine capacity.  Myself and my partners 
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are starting a new security company here in Nevada.  And 

we will just be, at this time, unarmed security, hoping 

to build our business.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  And, 

Mr. Leavitt, are you on the line?  

  MR. LEAVITT:  This is Mitch Leavitt, and I am 

sworn in.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  And, 

Mr. Malone, are you on the line?  

  MR. MALONE:  I am.  This is Mark Malone, and I 

have been sworn in.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So if I could 

just clarify.  Do we have the fingerprints for 

Mr. Leavitt?   

  MR. LEAVITT:  I had to do them twice, if you're 

asking me.  And, I think, they're all done now. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Please hold, sir.  

Thank you. 

  MS. LANCASTER:  Investigator Lancaster.  His 

fingerprints were rejected, so he had to get them 

redone.  That will take some time.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

Nevada Department of Public Safety sent us a letter on 

January 26th, 2021 stating that they had been rejected.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 
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Brown.  For Investigator Saladino, are we still awaiting 

the next set to come?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Correct.  We're waiting for them 

to get us the report.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer.  I had the same problem, I go get my 

fingerprints, they're just worn down.  And they're worn 

down.  And it has to do with how you worked or your age.  

Obviously, being my age, I don't work.  But, anyway, 

they get worn down.  It's very difficult, the way they 

do fingerprints nowadays, to have them done.  I really 

don't even have a problem with what happened here, 

because they rejected me because of that reason, from my 

understanding.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  I mean 

typically we hold for fingerprints.   

  Okay.  So let me just ask.  Mr. Malone, on 

your -- it looks like you had a civil judgment release 

from Clark County District Court of Nevada. 

  MR. MALONE:  Correct.  And that has been 

satisfied.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Do we have 

all the proof, Mr. Maxwell, that that has been taken 

care of?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino, for the 
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record.  We do have the court documents showing that 

it's been satisfied.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer.  Can I ask a question of our attorney, 

Mr. Detmer?  

  MR. DETMER:  Please.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  I don't 

even know how to phrase the question, because it's about 

the fingerprints.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I may be able to. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Somebody answer.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So, I think, what we 

are able to do is approve everybody else except for 

Mr. Leavitt, and then have him come back at a later 

date.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  That 

would be my understanding.  It's been my --  

  Shannon, did you hear that, or should I go back 

and repeat? 

  (The Reporter indicated what she heard.) 

  MS. DETMER:  And that was the gist of it, yes.  

My understanding is the Board's precedent is when 

fingerprints have not been received, that they be 

continued to a later date when they can be processed.  
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If not, it's -- and maybe I'm looking too far into it.  

It's almost an incomplete application without those 

fingerprints.  So my understanding is that, based on the 

regulations, you can approve the remainder, with the 

exception of the one, and bring it back on a later date.  

With that, I submit.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I'm good. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I motion to postpone Mr. Mitchel Leavitt as a 

member, at a further time, due to his, the discussed 

fingerprints.  I'm motioning just for his postponement.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I 

second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All in favor, say 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is also Board Member 

Cortez.  I am motioning to approve Mr. Craythorn as an 

individual private patrolman license, in addition to the 

members requesting Mr. Craythorn, Mr. Malone and 

Mr. Reilly.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I'll 

second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So, 

gentlemen, we did approve everybody except for 

Mr. Leavitt to move forward with the licensing.  

Mr. Leavitt, you will have to return your fingerprints 

here. 

  MR. LEAVITT:  I understand.  I redid them.  I 

am 70 years old.  And my first ones on the electronic 

machine didn't take.  I went down and did it old school. 

But I have had a background check when we got a Nevada 

limousine license from the NTA.  So I know that they 

work.  It's just we did it old school back then, and the 

electronic ones must not have taken my prints.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Understood, sir.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So we'll be in contact with you, 

Mr. Leavitt.  Board staff will be in contact with you 

regarding your fingerprints.  We'll get you scheduled 

for the meeting of the scheduled Board meeting.  Okay? 

  MR. LEAVITT:  Thank you very much.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

Have a great day. 
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  MR. LEAVITT:  You bet.  Bye.  

  MR. CRAYTHORN:  Thanks.  

  MR. MALONE:  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Then we move 

to item number 26.  Mr. Logan, are on you the line?  

  MR. LOGAN:  Yes, I am.  This is Joel Logan.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Great.  Why don't 

you tell us a little bit about yourself and what you 

intend to do with your license. 

  MR. LOGAN:  Okay.  I'm a former deputy sheriff 

and police officer with about a little over 10 years of 

experience through the state of California and Arizona, 

as well as a former government contractor through 

Bigelow Aerospace Advanced Space Studies.  If approved, 

my intention is to become the qualifying agent for 

Reliance Security, for the private patrolman and 

processor, process server license.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I have a question for Investigator Saladino.   

  (The Reporter indicated an inability to hear.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Yeah, Shannon, the two remotes 

have died, so we're working on central.  So if could 

just all talk towards this direction. 
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This, again, is Board 

Member Brown.  I have a question for Investigator 

Saladino.  Reliance Security had an outstanding 

citation.  Has that been paid?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Correct.  Investigator Saladino.  

That citation has been paid, and I do have the 

confirmation number that the payment was made.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

Mr. Logan. 

  MR. LOGAN:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good morning to you, 

sir.  

  MR. LOGAN:  Good morning.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It seems that you were 

employed by a minimum of three police departments for a 

very short amount of time.  Can you explain what 

happened with all that?  

  MR. LOGAN:  Yeah, absolutely.  Initially, I 

went through the San Bernardino Sheriff's Academy.  

That's the part of California where I grew up.  After 

the academy, I put myself through the academy, and the 

first agency that hired me was the Monterey County 

Sheriff's Department located up in central California.  

So, of course, I took the job.  I went up there.  I 
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worked in the jails for a little over two years, I 

believe.  My intention, as I was working there, was to 

eventually transfer back down to San Bernardino Police 

Department.  I had several friends that worked there.  I 

was a fan of the police department.  And definitely 

more, more opportunities and more of a speed of a law 

enforcement agency that I wanted to work for.  

 So after about two and a half years, I got 

hired, and I just lateraled down to the San Bernardino 

Police Department.  I worked there for, oh, gosh, 

approximately five and a half, or five, yeah, a little 

over five and a half years.   

 And for no reason other than to get to a 

different pace of being a police officer, I moved to the 

Lake Havasu City Police Department where I believed I 

was going to spend the rest of my time and, you know, 

retire after 20 or so years.   

 But several years into that, I was kind of 

headhunted, recruited by a government contractor called 

ABS, that after about two years of them pursuing me, the 

opportunities that they gave me and the pay as well, I 

really couldn't pass up, and made the change.  And 

that's what then ended my career.  Everything was left 

on good terms and no issues.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer again.  
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Where do you reside now, sir?  

  MR. LOGAN:  Where do I reside?  In Las Vegas.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Did you work in 

Nevada with a California --  

  MR. LOGAN:  No. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- driver's license?   

  MR. LOGAN:  I couldn't hear you.  You cut off.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Did you work in Nevada 

with a California driver's license?  

  MR. LOGAN:  Did I work in Nevada with a 

California driver's license?  I'm not sure I know what 

you mean.  But I didn't work as a police officer in 

Nevada.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, but you weren't 

working in Nevada.  Do you have a Nevada driver's 

license?  

  MR. LOGAN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have one now?  

  MR. LOGAN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. LOGAN:  Yeah, you're welcome.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

 Okay.  So, Investigator Saladino, I see here 

under the financial, he had quite a few state tax liens.  
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Have these all been taken care of, or is he in payment 

arrangements?  

  MR. LOGAN:  Yes, they are.  They've been paid.  

And, well, actually, I should say, some of them, one of 

them was paid.  I don't have the information in front of 

me.  And the other ones were corrected.  The State of 

California, the Franchise Tax Board, put a lien on me.  

They believed that, for reasons that myself and my CPA 

could not determine, they believed that I was still 

living in California and working in California, although 

my jobs, you know, clearly stated that I'd moved to 

Arizona and then -- I moved to California, I'm sorry, 

then back to Nevada.  And, you know, I worked in Nevada.  

So that was cleared up, because I wasn't working in 

California.  Therefore, I didn't need to pay the taxes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Sir, thank 

you.   

  Investigator Saladino, do you have the 

paperwork for it?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Correct.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes.  Thank you.  

  Okay.  All right.  Are there any other 

questions?  

 Okay.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 
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Brown.  I move that we approve Mr. Logan's private 

patrolman and process server licenses and, also, 

corporate officer status and placing his individual 

license in abeyance so that he may become the qualifying 

agent for Reliance Security.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you. 

  I have a motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I'll second the motion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  That passes 

unanimously.  Thank you, Mr. Logan, and have a great 

day.  Congratulations.  

  MR. LOGAN:  Great.  Thank you.  Thank you.  I 

appreciate it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So now we'll 

go back to item number 20.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Is Savannah Miele on the call?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So let's move 

on.  So we are going to move -- oh, go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Can I make a motion?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes.  I'm open for a 

motion, please.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I make a motion 

that we deny the appeal of Ms. Savannah M. Miele, who's 

applying for a private investigator license.  And if 

approved, she's requesting that her individual private 

license be placed in abeyance so that she may become the 

qualifying agent for CoventBridge (USA), Incorporated, 

license number 1187.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I second the motion.  

  MR. DETMER:  I truly apologize.  If I'm 

understanding correctly, that was motion was made to 

deny the appeal of the licensure?  

  MR. INGRAM:  No, he was denying the licensure.  

We called for her again.  It was trailed. 

  MR. DETMER:  I thought the motion was made to 

deny the appeal.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  It's just to deny. 

  MR. DETMER:  I sincerely apologize for the 

interruption.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  So Board Member Gronauer 

made the motion.  

  MR. INGRAM:  That's right. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  And I will second.  This 

is Board Member Cortez seconding the motion to deny.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  
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We have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Did you want to take a 

break before we go, then, to the appeals?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So we have a couple 

still trailed.  Do we need to wait to get the 

fingerprints back?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  We've got about six weeks to 

get the fingerprints back.  So that's where we're at. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So it looks like we could 

move forward with Mr. Mark Hoyt.  

  MR. HOYT:  Good morning, Board.  I am under 

oath.  This is Mark Hoyt. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Could you 

hang on.  Hang on one second, sir.  We need to gather  

ourselves. 

  So did we, we did get the fingerprints?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, for the record, this is 

Kevin.  We received the fingerprint results back for 

item number 19 on the agenda, Mark Hoyt, and the Board's 

going to proceed with hearing his license request.  

  There's someone on the call that needs to mute 

their microphone until asked to speak, please.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, are you --  
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  MR. HOYT:  Is this better?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  

  MR. HOYT:  Okay.  Sorry about that.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Hold on just a second, Mr. Hoyt. 

  MR. HOYT:  Okay. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, did you catch that? 

  THE REPORTER:  That you received the 

fingerprints back? 

  MR. INGRAM:  Right, and we're going to move 

forward with item number 19 at this time.  

  THE REPORTER:  Yes, I did.  Thank you. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Mr. Hoyt, 

please tell us a little bit about yourself and what you 

intend to do with your license.  

  MR. HOYT:  Okay.  I'm currently an active 

member in the North Las Vegas Police Department.  I'm a 

detective assigned to the Special Victims Unit, have 

been since 2008.  Recently assigned over to, in fact, 

that's five or six years, to the Internet Crimes Against 

Children and Human Trafficking Task Force.  Prior to 

starting at the North Las Vegas Police Department, I was 

a Las Vegas Metro corrections officer.  And I left there 

just because I wanted to go to the street.  Prior to 

that, I was in the Air Force for eight years.  
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 I am eligible for retirement in July of this 

year.  So what my plan is, is to get my P.I. license, 

put it in abeyance for a little time, until I can retire 

and start working as a P.I. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I am motioning to approve Mr. Hoyt for an 

individual private investigator license.  If approved, 

he is requesting that his individual license be placed 

in abeyance so that we may become the qualifying agent.  

Member to be approved is Mark M. Hoyt.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Excuse me, Madam Chair.  He's 

applying for private investigator and, also --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  That's right. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Private investigator.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  QA.  Motioning to approve 

the request. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll second. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Motion and a second.  
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All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Congratulations, 

Mr. Hoyt.  It passes unanimously.  

  MR. HOYT:  Thank you.  Thank you, Board.  

Appreciate it.  Thank you again.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Now 23? 

  (There was a discussion off the record.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, for the record, this is 

Kevin Ingram.  I was just telling Madam Chair that --  

  Anyone that's on the call currently, you need 

to mute your phone until called upon.  We are hearing 

everything going on in your background.  Thank you. 

  THE REPORTER:  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So those of you on the call 

right now, we've gone through all of the fingerprints 

that were received in our office this morning.  And, 

unfortunately, Mr. Hoyt's were the only ones in that 

group.   

  So, Mr. Cooley, we're not going to be able to 

move forward with your hearing today.  We will notify 

you as soon as we get your fingerprints and get you 

scheduled for the next regularly scheduled Board 

meeting.   

  Along with Mr. Toth, we will not be able to 
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move forward with your hearing today.  Board staff will 

notify you as soon as we receive the fingerprints.  

  And so is that it?  Anybody, that's it? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes, that's it. 

  MR. INGRAM:  So, Mr. Toth and Mr. Cooley and 

Mr. Leavitt, we will be in touch with you.  You do not 

need to remain on the call today.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So at this time, 

we'll take a quick 15 minutes.  Okay.  Take a quick 

15-minute break.  We'll be back on line at 10:40. 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief of Operations Lori 

Irizarry.  We told work card holders to call in at 

11:30. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Oh. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay. 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  So that's the next time.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Maybe a longer break. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So I correct.  We 

will be back on line at 11:30. 

                        * * * * * 

(A break was taken, 10:24 to 11:30 a.m.)  

                        * * * * * 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Good morning, and 

welcome back to the PILB first quarter meeting.   
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  And, Kevin, are you on?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon Taylor?  

  THE REPORTER:  Yes, I'm here.  Thank you. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Shannon.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So I'd like 

to bring the meeting to order.  And we'll start off with 

agenda item number 27. 

  First, though, Board counsel, could you please 

swear everybody in.  

 MR. DETMER:  It would be my pleasure. 

 For all those who are about to testify, please 

raise your right hand.  Do you hereby swear or affirm to 

tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 

truth?  

 (All applicants and witnesses present were 

sworn/affirmed.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So when we call your 

number or your name, please join the call, and then 

please let us know that you understand that you're under 

oath.  Okay?  

 So we'll go ahead and get started.  Is Angelina 

Groom on the line?  Angelina Groom?  

 Okay.  We'll trail that till the end and see if 

she joins us. 

 Moving on to agenda item 28, Joseph Robinson?  
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  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes, I'm here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, 

Mr. Robinson.  Are you aware you're under oath?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Sir, could 

you tell us a little bit about yourself.   

  MR. ROBINSON:  Well, I've been doing, being a 

life coach and doing brand ambassadoring and teaching 

people about the direct impacts of their decisions and 

the importance of their decisions through my life 

journey.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Board, are 

there any questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I have a question for Investigator Jones.  

  MR. JONES:  Yes, this is Investigator Jones.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Did we -- or I'm sorry.  

This might have already been addressed.  Did we receive 

back his fingerprints? 

  MR. JONES:  Yes.  Yes, we got the -- I'm sorry.  

This is Investigator Jones.  We got the fingerprints 

back last week.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  And I'm sorry.  I didn't 

hear the last.  Did we get a hit, is it cleared?  

  MR. JONES:  There was one additional arrest 
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that was not on the initial report that you have in 

front of you.  February 12th of 1991, out of California, 

the applicant was arrested for carrying a weapon in the 

vehicle and having a firearm in a public place.  This 

was dismissed.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  And what was the 

disposition?  I didn't hear the last part.  

  MR. JONES:  Investigator Jones.  This was 

dismissed.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Oh, it was dismissed.  

 This question is now for -- this is Board 

Member Cortez again.  Question for Mr. Robinson.  Could 

you give me some history on your criminal background.  I 

see, well, now I know of the 1991 incident.  I see the 

1995 incident of carrying a firearm in a public place.  

So that would make it, I believe, a second offense, 

based on what I just heard.  And then a DUI.  So can I 

get some information about the weapons charges?  What's 

going on with that?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Well, due to my childhood 

mistakes, I had some, I had carried some problems with 

the organization out there.  And those, those charges, 

without getting into the details, there was charges.  I 

was arrested, but they didn't -- they didn't find no 

weapons on me actually.  I was arrested for those 
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weapons, but those weapons was someone else's weapons.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Are we speaking about the 

1991 or the 1995 incident?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  I'm talking about both of them, 

to my knowledge.  They both, both of them.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Officer Jones, is it my 

understanding that the 1995, the outcome was guilty?   

  MR. JONES:  Yes.  This was later dismissed 

under 1203.4.  But as the Board knows, we don't 

recognize that, and that's why he was denied.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  So just for 

clarification, Mr. Robinson, you're indicating to me 

that those, that it did not occur, that those charges 

were dismissed, or is that what I understood?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  The charges was dismissed based 

on the fact that they had, that those weapons wasn't 

actually mine.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  

  MR. ROBINSON:  As far as my knowledge.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Investigator 

Jones, is it my understanding that the court documents 

or the disposition court documents were not provided?  

Or did you get those, were those obtained, by any 

chance?  

  MR. JONES:  I do not have court documents for 
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the firearms charges.  However, I do have one for the 

DUI.  I do have the fingerprint report, as I stated 

previously, which do show both firearms were dismissed.  

However, the 1995 one was under California Penal Code 

1203.4. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  So we have court 

documents for 2004, no court documents for the '95, 

Correct?  

  MR. JONES:  That is correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  That concludes all 

my questions.  Thanks.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So, Mr. Robinson, 

can I ask why you didn't disclose the 1991 arrest?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  To my knowledge, I thought that 

the charges was all -- it was three charges all in one.  

I didn't even know nothing about the -- a '91 arrest, to 

be honest with you.  And, then, to speak on the DUI, 

that was dropped down to a reckless driving, as far as 

my knowledge as well.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I need clarification.  Did you indicate that 

1991, you were not aware of that arrest, therefore you 

did not disclose it on the application?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  No, I put what I -- as far as my 

knowledge, I put what was on there, the '95.  And on the 
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'95, from my records that I have, 'cause I have got this 

expunged, it had two charges on there.  So I thought 

that was all the charges, I thought it was three charges 

or one charge in three different.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Let me clarify my 

question.  Are you aware that there was a legal action 

against you in 1991; do you recall of an arrest or a 

citation?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Is there a reason 

why you did not disclose that?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  I thought it was on there, on 

the '95 charge, I thought it was on there at the same 

penal code as -- there was two different penal codes on 

this one charge.  And from my, from my knowledge, that 

those charges was all in one arrest.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  And the 1991 occurred in 

California, correct?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes, ma'am. 

  MR. ROBINSON:  Okay.  Now I understand.  All 

right.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

other questions?  

  Investigator Jones, so the '91, just so I 

understand, is that one's just an arrest and it was not 
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disclosed?  

  MR. JONES:  Correct.  And, additionally, this 

was dismissed, not under 1203.4, was not specified in 

the fingerprints, and they stated dismissed.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  And so 

I'm not sure I understand why he thinks that '91 and '95 

are the same arrest, or the same action, I guess. 

  MR. JONES:  Investigator Jones.  I'm not sure, 

either.  They're showing up as separate events, but I'm 

going to double-check the incident number right now.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any 

other questions while he checks that?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Mr. Robinson, this is 

Board Member Cortez.  It was my understanding that you 

were under the impression that the 1991 and then the 

four years later 1995 event were tied together based on 

California Penal Code?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. JONES:  Yes, this is Investigator Jones.  

They have different arrest case numbers for the '91 and 

the '95 arrests.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Investigators Jones, this 

is Board Member Cortez.  Is the California Penal Code 

that Mr. Robinson is referring back to, is that, are 
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those correct statements, or was there a 

misunderstanding on his part?  

  MR. JONES:  I believe, that would be a 

misunderstanding on his part.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  If there are no 

further questions, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we grant the appeal for 

Mr. Robinson's work card registration.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?   

 I'll call again.  I have a motion.  Do I have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I'll second the motion to approve.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  MR. INGRAM:  Just for the record, normally, 

when we're making a decision on a denial for an appeal, 

we state for the record the reason for the motion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Oh, okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I'd 

like to provide clarification to my motion to grant the 

appeal for time and distance.  This happened a number of 
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years ago.  

  (The Reporter indicated an inability to hear.) 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  This is Board 

Member Brown.  I'd like to clarify my motion to grant 

the appeal due to time and distance from the offenses 

listed. 

  THE REPORTER:  Thank you very much.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  You're welcome. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Board Member Cortez.  

Second the motion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Mr. Robinson, 

your license has been approved.  Someone from the PILB 

will reach out to you for next steps.  Okay?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Thank you.  Thank you very much. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  You're very welcome, 

sir.  

 No on 29.  So item number 29, we don't have 

fingerprints for.   

 So we're going to move on to item number 30.  

Juan Smith, are you on the line?  Mr. Smith, are you on 

the line?  

 Okay.  We'll trail that one.  
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 Item number 31, we don't have the fingerprints 

on as well.  So we're going to trail that one.  

 Item number 32 is the same, we do not have the 

fingerprints on.  

 So item number 33.  Steven Bernard, are you on 

the line, sir?  

  MR. BERNARD:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  Do you 

understand you're under oath, sir?  

  MR. BERNARD:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Tell us a 

little bit about yourself, please.  

  MR. BERNARD:  Well, I'm 48 years old.  I'm a 

father of five.  And I'm just, you know, trying to get 

by and work.  And getting granted for this card will 

help me with full-time employment.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any Board 

questions?  

  MR. BERNARD:  No, ma'am.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  Mr. Bernard, what's your employment, what are 

you doing today?  Tell me what you're doing. 

  MR. BERNARD:  Right now, I'm just trying to 

hustle any side jobs with friends, like doing windows 

and carpets and stuff like that, just to try to get by.  
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  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  And how long have you 

been doing that for?  

  MR. BERNARD:  I've been doing it on and off for 

eight years.  And I've been working like through 

agencies like the long-term, long-term assignments.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  I think that 

about, what, 27 years ago, there was an incident where 

there was a theft by deception.  Could you give me a 

little bit of details and background as to that 

incident.  

  MR. BERNARD:  Well, I met a girl in California.  

And she was living in Utah, flew me out there to go see 

her.  We were out shopping in a mall.  And her friend 

had found a checkbook.  And from there, they started 

going to stores and writing checks.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Investigator Maxwell, I'm 

assuming.  Or I'm sorry.  Are all of these statements 

made current and up-to-date? 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief of Operations Lori 

Irizarry taking Mr. Maxwell's cases.  Yes, that is 

correct.  Mr. Bernard had listed the 1994 felony offense 

out of Utah.  And that was the only charge that came up 

for arrests that came up on his fingerprint report.  

  (The Reporter asked Ms. Irizarry to repeat.) 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Certainly.  I am taking 
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Mr. Maxwell's work card cases.  And for Mr. Bernard, he 

did list the 1994 felony offense out of Utah.  And that 

was the only offense and arrest that came back on his 

fingerprint report.  

  THE REPORTER:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Mr. Bernard, this is 

Board Member Cortez.  I have a question.  The girlfriend 

involved in the incident years ago, is, by any chance, 

is she the mother of one of your children?  

  MR. BERNARD:  Absolutely not.  Absolutely not.  

After that incident, I had never seen her again.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

  MR. BERNARD:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Bernard, this is Board 

Member Brown.  I would just like a little bit of 

confirmation.  You said that the ladies that you were 

with were writing checks.  Were you involved in that, 

also?  

  MR. BERNARD:  Not of actually writing the 

checks, but trying to get some clothes, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  I just wanted to 

make sure, because it looks like you did some time in 

prison.  The way you explained it, it was nothing other 

than being in the wrong place, wrong time.  

  MR. BERNARD:  No.  I was in the wrong place, 
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wrong time.  I didn't do any time in prison.  I did like 

60 some odd days in county jail.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you, 

Mr. Bernard.  

  MR. BERNARD:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Madam Chief Irizarry, I 

have a follow-up question.  Mr. Bernard is indicating 

that he did -- I'm sorry.  Count.  60 days?  Okay.   

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief of Operations Lori 

Irizarry.  When the report was written by Mr. Maxwell, 

we did not have the full fingerprint report, and that is 

what was listed on the application.  But what -- 

Mr. Bernard is correct.  The original charge was a 

forgery, which was dismissed without prejudice.  He pled 

to the lesser offense, theft by deception, convicted.  

The prison sentence was suspended.  He paid restitution 

and did approximately 63 days jail time.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Thank you.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  You're welcome.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Board, are 

there any other questions?  

 Okay.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I will motion to approve the work card for 

Mr. Bernard.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second? 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I'll 

second. 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  We 

are including the basis for the motion. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  The motion being by the 

statements made by the applicant regarding my questions.   

  (The Reporter indicated an inability to hear.) 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  So this is Board Member 

Cortez.  I am approving, I am granting the appeal for 

Mr. Bernard for the time and distance of the occurrence 

stated on his application.  

  THE REPORTER:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  You're welcome. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  Oh, I'm sorry.  You have to say it first.  You 

said it once, but I'm sorry.  Go ahead. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  

Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I 

second the motion to grant the appeal.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  

We have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Mr. Bernard, your 

work card has been approved.  And the licensing Board 

will reach out to you for next steps.  

  MR. BERNARD:  Thank you very much.  I 

appreciate it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  You're very welcome, 

sir.  Congratulations.  

  MR. BERNARD:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Do we go to item 34?  

Okay.  So we're now at item number 34.  Terrill Evans, 

are you online?  

  MR. EVANS:  Yes, I am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Are you aware 

you are under oath, sir?  

  MR. EVANS:  Yes, I am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Tell us a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. EVANS:  Actually, I just, this past 

January, I just turned 42 years old.  I am a father of 

three.  And I just, I just try to, just try to get by 

and just try to work and do the things that I can to 

provide for my kids.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  And am I to 

understand you were given a provisional card?  

  MR. EVANS:  I'm sorry? 
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  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  Yes, he -- or, 

no, he was not.  He is renewing his work card.  So he 

had a work card prior to this that expired in June 2020.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  Board Member 

Gronauer.  Mr. Evans, explain what happened there in 

this here case in 2016, attempting to resist a public 

officer with a firearm.  

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  It was an incident that 

happened.  Me and my son's mom, we was coming from the 

store.  We was on the bus.  And he was being very 

disrespectful.  He didn't know that we was together.  He 

was being very disrespectful.  And when we got off the 

bus, then he just started being very, very, very 

disrespectful.  But I didn't -- I said, "Look," I say, 

and I told him, I said, "She's with me.  That's my kid's 

mom."  And right there everything escalated, but I did 

not even -- I had my firearm on me.  So.  But we just 

continued to walk.  And, I guess, he -- he seen my 

firearm on me.  So he went.  I don't know what happened, 

but as we was walking through the complex, then that's 

when, that's when the Metro, they pulled on up.  And I 

just put my hands on up.  And they felt my firearm on 

me.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Madam, 

everything to do with investigations, do you have a  

police report on this?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief of Operations Irizarry.  

Yes, we do. 

  MR. EVANS:  So I mean, but, so, so I mean after 

the --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sir.  Sir, please 

hang on.  We're asking the investigator some questions.  

Please hold.  

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Ms. Irizarry, can you 

go ahead and just give me the gist of this here report? 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Certainly.  So.  Chief Irizarry.  

I do have the police report from the event.  It's not 

quite as Mr. Evans has explained.  It appears that he 

had threatened another male.   

  I'm going to read from the police report:  He 

threatened another male with a firearm and left a gas 

station walking towards an apartment complex.  While at 

the apartment complex, the police tried to stop him as 

he's holding his son.  He refused to listen to commands 

and kept walking.  After several more attempts, he 

finally puts down his son, and he reaches his hands near 

his -- I'm reading from the report.  He reaches his 
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hands in his hip and waistline and where the gun was 

held.  Then he backpedaled away from the officers, at 

which time they drew weapons on him.  And they saw the 

firearm in his waist belt and holstered on his hip.  The 

subject had his hands on his firearm, and officers drew 

their weapon and gave several more attempts.  At that 

time, he surrendered, got to his knees, and held his 

hands above his head, where they confiscated the 

9 millimeter.   

  During the arrest, they stated, Evans is not a 

convicted felon but has multiple prior felony charges 

out of Chicago for possession of cocaine, dangerous 

drugs, assault, as well as multiple domestic batteries.  

At that time, he was arrested and taken down to be 

booked. 

  And then you have your report.  I do have his 

fingerprint report on his other arrests that did come 

up.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Can I ask a 

question?  Were those other arrests -- so Board Member 

Nixon.  Were those other arrests brought up in his 

initial application for a work card?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  No, they were 

not.  When his fingerprints came back -- Chief Irizarry.  

To answer your question, Ms. Nixon, the arrest out of 
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Chicago, as well as other offenses in Las Vegas, were 

not listed on his application.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So, I guess, my 

question is he had his work card originally, and that 

didn't come up on the original application or 

fingerprint run?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  That's incorrect.  They did come 

up on his prior.  The police report says he was not a 

convicted felon out of Chicago.  He was never convicted 

of his charges in Chicago.  To elaborate, in 1996 and 

1997, in Chicago, the charge was originally a felony, 

mob action, use of force, which was dismissed, 

possessing 15 or more grams, which was reduced to a 

misdemeanor offense.  In 2001, Chicago, domestic 

battery, the disposition was unknown.  Those were the 

original charges out of Chicago.   

  In 2004, he had a DUI in Las Vegas, guilty, 

misdemeanor.  2008, DUI, guilty at trial, misdemeanor, 

he had to pay a fine, out of Las Vegas.   

  All those charges were documented on his first 

work card, but none of them were felonies.  So he was 

able to get the work card.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So, then -- 

okay.  Are there any other questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 
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Gronauer.  Mr. Evans, when did you get released from 

CCDC?  

  MR. EVANS:  I was released on June the 22nd, 

2018.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What have you been 

doing since then?  

  MR. EVANS:  Actually, I've been -- actually 

my -- I actually have went back to work, just for the 

time being, up until last year, right before the 

pandemic, and my guard had actually, it expired.  And so 

ever since then, I haven't been doing anything.  I've 

been looking for work, trying to do anything that I can 

just to support, try to help support my kids.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Thank you, 

sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a question.  

This is Board Member Nixon.  You said you've gone back 

to work.  Was that as a security officer?  Sir?  

  MR. EVANS:  Yeah, I'm sorry.  I couldn't hear 

you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So when you said 

you'd gone back to work after you got out of jail, was 

that as a security officer?  

  MR. EVANS:  Yes.  But then I didn't, I didn't 

know that if my guard card or anything, but the job is 
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still, they let me continue to work for a little bit.  

And actually, I was a part of Hope for Prisoners down 

here in Las Vegas, Nevada.  So I completed that course 

and tried to better myself and to move forward.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN NIXON:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  Question for Chief Irizarry.  Does the report 

from 2016 indicate anything about him being in uniform 

or having a concealed carry permit if he wasn't in 

uniform?  

  MR. EVANS:  I appreciate it.  Well, no, 

actually --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sir, the question is 

for the investigator.  Sir, please hold.  The question 

was for the investigator.  

  MR. EVANS:  Oh, I'm sorry.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  No problem.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  It did not.  It 

states he was wearing plainclothes, nothing indicating a 

security uniform, and that he was arrested for carrying 

a concealed firearm, I'm sorry, a concealed weapon 

firearm without a permit.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

further questions?  
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 If no further questions, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

I make the motion to uphold the denial.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I will second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So, sir, 

unfortunately, at this time we're not able to approve 

your appeal.  So you still do not have a work card.  If 

you have any questions, please feel free to call the 

PILB office.  

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  So I was denied?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  That's correct, yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Board Member Cortez.  

That's correct.  

  My question is if I'm able to make a suggestion 

to Mr. Evans in the event he wants to apply again, or if 

I --   

  MR. EVANS:  I do have a question.  I mean I do 

have a question.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Evans, please hold.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Go ahead, Mr. Evans.  

What's your question?  

  MR. EVANS:  Well, okay.  I understand that I 

was, okay, pretty much I was in the wrong.  You know, I 

mean I do understand that.  But I served my time.  I did 

my time that was -- I did my time in jail and 

incarcerated.  And they said that that is not going to 

be a felony or anything.  So I was like, okay, well, let 

me apply, reapply.  I know I was in the wrong.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Let me.  Just a 

second, sir.  Let me stop you there.  The decision has 

been to uphold the appeal.  At this time, you know, I 

heard you should go ahead and try again and just be as 

forthcoming as you possibly can. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So, sir, the reason 

that your work card was denied was because of time and 

distance.  You know, your incident just happened pretty 

recently, and you don't have enough time and distance 

from the time of the incident.  We encourage you to 

reapply again in a year and do the same thing you did 

this time, disclose all of your arrests, and then it 

will be reconsidered.  

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  But this, my last arrest was 

four years ago.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I understand, sir.  

Thank you.  

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  Can I get my money back?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  No, sir.  

  MR. EVANS:  So I can't get my money back, 

neither?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  No, sir.  And we 

have to move forward.  Thank you.  

  MR. EVANS:  That's bullshit.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Have a wonderful 

day, sir.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Right there.  Right 

there. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So is this where we 

take a recess, or do we, can we move on?  

  MR. IRIZARRY:  There's one more. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Andre Cooper. 

  MS. READUS:  Number 45 is on, too. 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  There was one 

more, Andre Cooper, number 44, that was supposed to 

called in at 11:30, but we do not have his prints.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Cooper, are you on the call 

right now, Andre Cooper?  

  MS. READUS:  Number 45 is on the phone.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Ma'am, please hold.  

  MS. READUS:  All right.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Andre Cooper, are you on the 

phone right now?  

 All right.  For those of you that are currently 

on the phone, be please keep your phones muted until we 

call your name, so that we can stay on track without 

interruptions. 

 MS. READUS:  What about in regards to the 

email?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Ma'am, please hold.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  They may be on 

the phone call now.  We advised them to call a little 

early.  But they technically are not supposed to call in 

until 12:30.  

  (There was a discussion off the record.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So right now, 

if you're not on the line, we'll trail you for later, 

but we're going to see who's on the line.  So.  And 

we'll have to reswear you in.  So let me take a roll 

call first.  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So if you're on the phone 

right now, please respond that you're on the phone.  

Dametrius Ford?  Dametrius Ford?    

  MR. FORD:  I'm here, Dametrius Ford.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Great.   

  (There was a discussion off the record.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  All right.  So let me go ahead and 

move on and see who also on the call.  We have, do we 

have Jason Lee on the phone?  Jason Lee?   

  Marlowe Madden?  Marlowe Madden?   

 Sixto Morales?  Sixto Morales?   

 Nicholas Patton?  

  MR. PATTON:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Stand by.  

 Evelyn Vandernick?  Evelyn Vandernick?  

 Scott Williams?  Scott Williams?  

 Lee Johnson?  Lee Johnson?  

 Sidney Moore?  Sidney Moore?  

 Tanya Readus?  Tanya Readus? 

  MS. READUS:  Yes, I'm on the phone.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  All right.  Stand by.  

 So, Mr. Detmer, we're swearing in Dametrius 

Ford.  We have Nicholas Patton.  We have Tonya Readus.  

 MR. DETMER:  And for the record, Mike Detmer.  

For those who are about to testify, can you raise your 

right hand?  Do you hereby swear or affirm to tell the 

truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

 MS. READUS:  Yes. 

 MR. FORD:  Yes. 
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 MR. PATTON:  Yes. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So we're now 

on item number 35, Dametrius Ford?  

  MR. FORD:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Do you 

understand, sir, that you're under oath?  Do you 

understand, sir, that you're under oath?  

  MR. FORD:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  Tell us 

a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. FORD:  Well, right now, I am working.  I've 

been working for the last, I guess, about several years.  

I was working in Los Angeles, California, well, actually 

in Santa Monica at Hotel Carmel for about a year and a 

half right before the coronavirus.  And I was working 

some other places after the incident.  I moved to 

Las Vegas.  And I just got myself together.  And I was 

just taking care of some other things I had to take care 

of with my license, to get my license back.  And I got 

it back.  I paid some debts in California.  And I did 

some community service. 

  I've been working.  I have been just trying to 

get myself stable.  And right now, I moved back to 

Las Vegas recently, and I just got a job.  And I have a 

family.  I have kids.  I just had a newborn, eight-month 
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old.  Her name's Anyla.  And I've just been taking care 

of my family and going to work every day.  And I'm just 

interested in being a security guard for the state of 

Nevada.  So I'm trying to pursue and qualify to be a 

guard.  And like I said, I was, I've been working every 

day except for Saturday and Sunday.  And, you know, I'm 

just barely making it.  But I'm trying to get more 

income and try to find other ways to make an honest 

living.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

Congratulations on the newborn.  

  MR. FORD:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

questions from the Board?  

  MR. FORD:  No, well --   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  No, sir.  Hang on.  

These are questions for the Board, from the Board to 

you.  

  MR. FORD:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  Mr. Ford, question.  I heard you're working and 

working nights.  I didn't hear what exactly that you 

did.  

  MR. FORD:  I am actually working for Polar 

Shades, and they just produce shades for like different 
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various people or companies.  And right now, I'm just 

like in the production.  We make the shades and pack 

them.  I'm doing the packing and the wrapping.  I was at 

first kind of like learning how to manufacture the 

shades and just put them together.  But now they have me 

in shipping, so I'm just basically wrapping and 

shipping.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  And when you say shades, 

explain to me what shades are.  

  MR. FORD:  Shades are like shades for the 

interior and the exterior of a house or a business.  

They're to block the sun, from having too much sunlight 

inside your house.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  

  MR. FORD:  Or for a business or place of 

business.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  And I also wanted 

to get some clarification.  Did you indicate that you'd 

gotten into some trouble in Santa Monica, or were you 

referring to the incident in Nevada?  

  MR. FORD:  The incident in Nevada seven years 

ago, seven, eight years ago.  Yeah, that was it.  After 

that, I went back to California, because I was just 

shook up myself from the incident.  And I just got 

myself together.  Because I didn't have my license at 
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the time, either, while I was staying here.  I had to go 

back and finish paying on some old tickets and various 

tickets, and I had just to take care of it.  That's what 

I did.  I went back out there, and I took care of it, 

and I got my license back.  And I had to do community 

service and deal with several courts in California 

because of tickets I had when I was growing up and 

getting minor, small tickets.  And I took care of all 

that stuff.   

  And now I have my license.  I feel like I got 

past them steps.  And I'm just trying to pursue for what 

I was already really trying to pursue for.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Can I get a quick 

background synopsis as to what occurred?  

  MR. FORD:  Well, I got in an incident where I 

was like -- it was a person that I didn't really know 

had tried to attempt to, you know, like shoot, shoot at 

me.  Or like basically it was someone that was messing 

with me and my family.  And it was like I don't know the 

person, I don't know who the people were.  I was just 

really defending myself, and it happened to happen that 

way.  And I had to go to -- I was in custody.  And, you 

know, it was just, didn't look like I was defending 

myself.  And that's what had happened.  But I couldn't 

explain those matters, because the other person 
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didn't -- was like away, got away with the incident.  

They -- whatever happened.  I didn't run from the 

incident.  I was, I was already in the incident, and I 

just had to explain and do what I had to do pertaining 

to what the evidence was.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  I have 

a follow-up question for Madam Irizarry.     

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Sorry.  Chief 

Irizarry, could I get a synopsis of the police report?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  In the 

fingerprint report -- we did not receive a police 

report -- Mr. Ford did not disclose the initial arrest 

on his application.  It came up on when we did his 

SCOPE.  After he was denied, he has provided court 

documentation and did notify the investigator and list 

it after the fact.   

  But the court documentation showed that it was 

three charges.  Assault with a deadly weapon, felony.  

That was dismissed.  Discharging gun with -- I'm sorry.  

Discharging gun or other weapon where a person might be 

in danger, gross misdemeanor, dismissed.  He pled guilty 

to aiming a gun at a person, gross misdemeanor.  

  MR. FORD:  Yes.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  The only other offenses that 
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came up on his fingerprint report were traffic offenses, 

which, I believe, Mr. Ford was trying to explain.  He 

had some traffic offenses that he had.  He was going 

back and forth.  It looked as thought there was only two 

tickets about 10 years ago that he was paying on.  But 

other than that, those are the only other charge, that's 

the only charge that showed up on his fingerprint 

report.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member  

Cortez with a follow-up, a question.  I'm assuming that 

the -- there were some negotiations?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  I wouldn't know that answer.   

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  In the court documents. 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  It just said they were 

dismissed, and he pled guilty to the third.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Board Member 

Cortez.  Going back to Mr. Ford, is there a reason why 

you failed to disclose until after the findings, or 

could you give me a reason why you failed to disclose?  

  MR. FORD:  Disclose?  I don't understand that 

question.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Why didn't you put 

it on your application?  This is Board Member Nixon.  

  MR. FORD:  What did I put on my application?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Why did you not put 
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the arrest and conviction on your application?  

  MR. FORD:  You know what, I was just not, I 

just didn't put it down.  It's my mistake.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

  Oh, Madam.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  I wanted to 

point out, Mr. Ford did have a prior work card, which 

was issued in January 2015, expired in January 2020.  

His listed employment ended in June of 2019.  He was 

working for approximately eight to 10 licensees during 

the time that he had his work card prior to this.  But I 

do not show him working with a work card since June 26, 

2019.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

  MR. FORD:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  If there's no other 

question, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

I make a motion to uphold the denial.  Time, distance 

and the severity of the offense.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I second the motion to uphold the denial. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  
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We have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So I'm sorry, sir, 

but at this time we did not approve your work card.  So 

you could reach out to the PILB office for next steps.  

We did not grant you the word card. 

  MR. FORD:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  You're very welcome, 

sir.  

 Mr. Patton, are you still on the line?  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, ma'am, I'm here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Are you aware you're under oath, sir?  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, ma'am, I am. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Tell us a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. PATTON:  My name is Nicholas Patton.  I 

have four daughters.  I'm a good husband, hard-working 

person, go to work.  I love working with people, love 

meeting new people, love taking care of people.  I've 

been doing security for like 10 years.  And I just feel 

like, you know, it's kind of my passion or whatever, you 

know, look after people and take care of people, 

whatever.   

  So I'm just out trying to get my card, you 
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know, so I can make some more things happen, in the 

security field.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

 Are there any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez for -- I like Madam.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Do we have the 

fingerprint result?  I don't know if we got those back.  

This is Board Member Cortez asking Chief Irizarry 

whether or not the fingerprints came back clear.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  Mr. Patton, at 

the time that you guys received your report, we did not 

get the fingerprints back.  Since then, we have them 

back.  The offenses that he has listed are what show on 

the fingerprints.   

  I wanted to point out.  This is Mr. Patton's 

second time before the Board.  He was originally denied, 

and his denial was upheld in December 2019 for 

nondisclosure.  At that time, the minutes show that the 

Board had asked him to reapply in the year.  He did 

reapply in December of 2020.  He has disclosed the event 

at this time.  And only the charges that he listed in 

2014 and 2019 came back on his fingerprint report.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  This is Board 
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Member Cortez again.  Mr. Patton, could you tell me 

again, and this, I'm sorry for the lack of memory, but 

could you tell me why you failed to disclose that you 

were still on probation?  I understand you did disclose 

the incidences, but apparently that there was no mention 

of probation.  The probation, what's the status of that?  

  MR. PATTON:  Probation, I didn't know anything 

about probation.  I didn't establish.  I put like one or 

two of them down because they were basically the same, 

they was the same thing.  I had got arrested for the 

same charge.  So that's why I only put like maybe one or 

two charges the first time a couple years ago. 

  As far as probation, well, they just wanted me 

to, I just paid a fine.  One time I paid a fine.  

Another time they just, you know, let me sit there for 

like two hours, and then they released me.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  Question for Mr. Patton.  Did you say that 

you've been working as a security guard for 10 years?  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, sir, I have.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Where was that?  

  MR. PATTON:  In Mississippi.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Not here in Nevada?  

  MR. PATTON:  No, I've been working here in 

Nevada with security for like a year, maybe two years 
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now.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  For who?  

  MR. PATTON:  The Marquee, Marquee Tower.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Follow-up question 

for Chief Irizarry.  Would that be working without a 

work card?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  

  MR. PATTON:  No, sir, you don't need a PILB.  I 

think, it had to do with gaming, like a gaming 

registration or something like that.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Please hold. 

  MR. PATTON:  Oh, I'm sorry.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  On his 

application, he did list working security here in 

Las Vegas for the casinos, the Marquee Night Club, which 

does not require a work card. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Oh, okay.  Thank you.  

Sorry.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

 So just to be clear, because, I think, you 

broke up a little, he is not on probation or any other 

thing right now?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  That's correct.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer.  Mr. Patton.  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The offense I see in 

2018, April of 2018, violation of traffic, possession of 

marijuana with firearm, what is that about?  

  MR. PATTON:  I was, I was just on the way to my 

house.  And the police officer already had someone 

pulled over on the side.  So I was passing by them.  I'm 

not speeding, I'm not doing anything.  I'm going the 

speed limit just right.  I have tinted windows.  My 

windows was a little tinted.  So I'm guessing he wanted 

to see what was going on, who was in the truck.  So he 

flew out from where he was, drove behind me, drove 

behind me for a little while, and then he threw his 

lights on.  Okay.  Recently, I had smoked, I had smoked 

some marijuana.  So my truck was smelling like 

marijuana, whatever.  So then they asked me to get out 

of the car.  I had, these were my own weapons, I had my 

own weapons on me.  You know, confiscated my weapons, 

you know, took me to jail.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have a CCW for 

that weapon?  

  MR. PATTON:  No, sir.  In Mississippi, I didn't 

need a CC.  I had my own, I had my firearms permit, and 
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I have a security guard permit, was all I needed to have 

my firearms in Mississippi.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You have a security 

guard permit to carry your gun?  

  MR. PATTON:  The security guard permit was for 

my work.  But I have a firearms permit, also in 

Mississippi, for my weapon.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  This arrest 

happened in Mississippi?  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  All right.  

Yeah, I could see, that one's a felony.  

  MR. PATTON:  Oh, no, sir.  No, sir.  It was not 

a felony.  I have no felonies.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  No problem.  

Thank you, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So was this one -- 

I'm sorry.  This is Board Member Nixon.  Was this one 

dropped down to misdemeanor -- so this is Board Member 

Nixon for Chief.  It says on the report, severity, 

felony.  Was this dropped down to a misdemeanor?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  One moment. 

  So for the 2018 offense, it was possession of 

marijuana with a firearm.  The severity is felony.  

Disposition, it doesn't say it was dropped or reduced.  
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There was another offense with it, a traffic offense, 

which was a misdemeanor.  But it doesn't specifically 

state this was reduced to a misdemeanor offense.  But 

originally, the severity was a felony, though.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  Question for Mr. Patton.  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  You were convicted of a 

very similar offense four years before in the state of 

Mississippi?  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  And --   

  MR. PATTON:  Do you want me to explain?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  No, I think, I've got an 

explanation here.  It's pretty similar.  I was wondering 

why you didn't learn your lesson.  

  MR. PATTON:  Well, I learned my lesson, sir.  

I'm sorry.  I'm really not a bad person.  But I do some 

marijuana or whatever.  You know, so it was basically 

the same thing, I had smoked some marijuana much earlier 

and got pulled over.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  And, sir, have you 

been granted a concealed carry permit here in Nevada?  

  MR. PATTON:  Yes, sir, I took my test.  I took 

my CCW test like a couple month or two ago, but I have 
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not received my card or whatever.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Patton, this is Board 

Member Brown again.  Where was your Nevada concealed 

carry permit issued out of, which agency?  

  MR. PATTON:  It was issued here.  I went to 

the -- I want to say it's the 702 range, and I took the 

class there.  Yeah, I had to go down to the police 

station.  They wanted to pay some money.  And then they 

told me like a couple months, like some months or so, 

maybe six months.  I can't remember the exact time.    

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I'm sorry.  I'm not, 

I don't think I'm getting it.  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  Do we not have a disposition on the 2018 and 

2014 convictions?  Because it says, per minutes, the 

applicant stated the disposition was jail time and a 

fine.  

  MR. PATTON:  Well, I had a fine.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Hang on, sir.  This 

is for the investigator.  

  MR. PATTON:  Okay.  Sorry. 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  In 2014, it 

doesn't specifically state a disposition.  It tells the 

offense, possession of marijuana within a moving vehicle 

with a firearm, misdemeanor offense.  It doesn't say a 
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disposition on that charge. 

  2018, similar charge, a traffic violation, 

traffic ordinance, as well as a possession of marijuana 

with firearm, enhancement of penalty for drug charge 

while in possession of a firearm, felony.  

  Neither 2014 or 2018 doesn't give us a final 

disposition.  And if the Board wants to give me maybe 

about four minutes, I could run his SCOPE to see if a 

CCW charge came up.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino, for the 

record.  There is no CCW charge or case on SCOPE.  And I 

do see that his application has been received by 

Las Vegas Metro.  And it's unknown right now if they've 

issued it or not.  I do have a permit number.  I could 

possibly follow up and see if it's been issued or been 

denied.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I'm just trying to understand.  Don't we 

normally have to get disposition paperwork on any cases 

before they... 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  We request it 

of them, because what came back on their fingerprints, 

it's up to them to provide it.  This particular case was 

something that was already denied at the last Board 

hearing.  And they just advised him to list it. 
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  So when he contacted 

Mr. Maxwell, the original investigator, he relisted it 

to be heard at the Board hearing again.  I don't 

believe, to his understanding, that additional paperwork 

was requested at that time.  So I don't believe 

Mr. Maxwell requested it of him for this hearing, 

either.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Madam Chair, for the record, Kevin 

Ingram.  In perusing the minutes from the December 2019, 

2019 Board hearing where he was denied, I don't see 

anything where it asked him for additional information.  

His testimony is almost -- where his testimony was in 

2019, when questions were asked, upheld the denial based 

on time and distance.  And reasoning, Mr. -- at the 

time, Acting Board Chairman Flynn said not just because 

of the conviction of the marijuana, but because it was 

marijuana with the -- with the possession of a firearm 

with the possession of marijuana.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

  MR. PATTON:  Me?  

  UNIDENTIFIED:  Hello? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sir, this is the 

Board.  Hang on one second. 
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  MR. PATTON:  I'm sorry. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

other questions?  

 I actually have a question.  We didn't ask him 

for the paperwork.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  The 

Board's determination of whether or not to deny or 

uphold his appeal on the registration would be for 

competence, character, integrity.  Those are just some 

of the factors.  If the Board makes a decision, it would 

make a decision on the information provided, then the 

Board can, of course, do so.  If not, then the other 

option is to deny or trail.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I would request that we trail the matter.  I'm 

sorry.  This is Board Member Cortez motioning to trail  

Mr. Patton's case to allow him ample time to retrieve 

his court documentation.  I don't know if we can visit 

this at the next Board meeting.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  My 

understanding is that he's not being denied.  He's just 

being trailed, postponed. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Postponed. 

  MR. DETMER:  The Board's not making a 

determination.  
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  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Right.  

  MR. DETMER:  So the legal effect of a denial 

wouldn't be in place.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  

  MR. DETMER:  So if we trail, continue, 

postpone, trail, whatever the word is, to the next 

meeting.  Or you can go to the end of this session or 

tomorrow.  So it's at the Board's discretion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown 

for Investigator Saladino.  Do you have information 

whether or not he's been issued a CCW by Metro?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino, for the 

record.  I believe, that information, I should have it 

in a couple minutes.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Would that change 

anybody's mind about trailing it to just later?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, if we're going to 

have a discussion -- this is Board Member Gronauer.  But 

if we're going to have a discussion, to me, it's -- you 

know, I don't know what kind of paperwork we're asking 

for.  That's number one.  And how do we direct him what 

paperwork we're talking about.   

  And then my second part is, this is not much 

different than the case we just denied prior to this 

because of severity and time and distance.  This is a 
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2018 offense.  Four years prior to that was the same 

offense.  There are two different offenses four years 

apart, and that's only three years from where we are 

right now.   

  I have a problem trailing.  I have a problem 

doing a lot of things, well, except denying it.  But, I 

think, we have a motion that we're only in the 

discussion of right now.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Agree, more of a 

discussion than a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  We're discussing the 

motion is what I understand.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  

That's how I interpreted this discussion right now.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I'll take a motion. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  She already has the 

motion. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  I had a motion.  I 

believe, I -- this is Board Member Cortez.  And, I 

believe, I motioned to trail. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Until when? 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Until the next Board 

meeting.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I'll second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  I'm sorry.  This is Board 

Member Cortez.  I am not saying "aye." 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  Just 

for clarification, there are certain things you don't 

have to vote on, but you can. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  That's correct, I have 

the option to either agree or disagree based on my 

motion.   

  MR. DETMER:  Right. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understood.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I don't know 

where we're at here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So we're two 

nays. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  We have two nays and two 

ayes.  

  MR. DETMER:  Was there a call for nays? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  All opposed?   

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Nay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board member Gronauer.  
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  MR. DETMER:  So if there is a tie, the motion 

doesn't pass.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So, sir, 

unfortunately, at this time, the motion --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No.  No.  

  MR. DETMER:  I'm sorry.  The motion to trail 

didn't pass. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer for the record.  The 

motion doesn't pass.  That doesn't necessarily close the 

matter.  There still has to be a disposition on where to 

go from here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So I will  

entertain another motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer.  I'll make a motion to uphold the denial.  

It's based on severity of the offense and time and 

distance.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  It's Board Member Brown.  

I will second based on the same reasons given by Board 

Member Gronauer.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 
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  (Board members said "aye.")   

 ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So I'm sorry.  

At this time, Mr. Patton, we're unable to approve your 

work card.  Your denial has been upheld.  You may 

reapply in a year.  

  MR. PATTON:  All right.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  It should be 

five years, two denials back-to-back.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Patton, are you still there? 

  (There was a discussion off the record.) 

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  I was just 

stating to Director Ingram that with two back-to-back 

denials, that it isn't a year for him to reapply.  He 

has to wait five years.  And I will contact Mr. Patton 

to let him know.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So the Board will reach out to him 

that since it was back-to-back denials, that he'll be 

able to reapply in five years.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So now we're 

at agenda item number 45.  Ms. Tanya Readus, are you on 

the line?  

  MS. READUS:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Ms. Readus, 

are you aware you're on, you're --   
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  MS. READUS:  Under oath.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  -- under oath? 

  MS. READUS:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Please go ahead and tell us a little bit about yourself.  

  MS. READUS:  Well, I'm 52, 53 this year.  I 

have seven grown children.  My last one just got a full 

wrap with CSU.  He's going, he was going to be at the 

Big West Conference this year again.  Before the 

government closed down, it was last year.  So that's 

where my main focus has been, we get him through his 

schooling.  So he's the baby of seven. 

  And my sister got the job as the security 

company, and she was like, "Yeah, go ahead, go and try.  

They're hiring everybody right now."  I went down there 

and did everything, and my past messed me up, but I did 

my own application.  So I'm just trying to get back in 

the work field, because.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Got it.  Are there 

any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Yes.  This is Board Member 

Brown.  Question for Chief Irizarry.  It indicates that 

there were possibly six cases attributed to the 

applicant, that we did not have a result of the 

fingerprints.  Do we have that now?  
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  MS. IRIZARRY:  Yes.  Chief Irizarry.  Yes.  

Elaborate? 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yes, please.  I'm sorry.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  On your background report that 

you would have received, this is a unique one, you would 

notice that there was no actual charges listed on the 

application.  On her application, Ms. Readus marked yes 

for felony and wrote 2005 San Diego probation, but no 

further information.  Office staff, at the time that she 

turned in her application on March 30th, did tell her 

and showed her that she needs to list all arrests and 

all offenses.  She didn't write, didn't know and 

estimates the time, I'm sorry, how old she would have 

been at the time of these offenses, or to get court 

documentation or instructed her to get her SCOPE from 

Las Vegas Metro for her court documents.  She decided to 

the turn in the application with the information missing 

instead.   

  When Mr. Maxwell, the previous investigator, 

had tried contacting Ms. Readus multiple times and 

indicated that he was denying her for a felony 

conviction, he did a preliminary search for San Diego 

courts and noticed that there were six court cases in 

her name, but the information was only available for 

purchase.  And he advised, he advised her that we are 
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still waiting for the fingerprint report and that the 

fingerprint report may not list disposition, that she 

should get the San Diego courts herself.  She wrote a 

letter stating that she did not have the financial means 

to get the San Diego documents, and still did not 

elaborate on any of her charges.   

  Since then, the fingerprint report has come 

back.  And I could list the charges that came up on 

them.   

  1998, I'm sorry, 1988, San Diego, misdemeanor 

hit and run, severity unknown, for under the influence 

of a controlled substance, providing false ID, 

unlawfully taking a vehicle without consent, probation 

revoked.  

 1990, San Diego, robbery, severity and 

disposition unknown.   

 1991, San Diego, second-degree burglary, 

dismissed, plea to another charge, which was theft, 

which she was convicted of, misdemeanor.  

 Same year, 1991, false impersonation, severity 

unknown, possessing stolen property, severity unknown, 

disposition on both unknown. 

 2000, San Diego, conspiracy to commit a crime, 

three years probation, severity unknown.  Dismissed 

charges on that offense, I'm sorry, that incident were  
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access account information without consent for checking 

account, dismissed, theft by forgery, dismissed.  

 2006, San Diego, manufacture, sell, possess 

dangerous weapon, severity unknown, CCW in vehicle of a 

convicted person, carrying a loaded firearm by a felon, 

prohibited person with a firearm, conviction, but 

severity unknown.  

 2011, San Diego, controlled substance 

paraphernalia, possession of a controlled substance, 

convicted, severity unknown.  

 2012, San Diego, receiving stolen property, 

severity unknown, and a possession of stolen vehicle, 

which was dismissed.  

 2013, San Diego, misdemeanor possession of a 

controlled substance, guilty, misdemeanor prostitution, 

guilty, misdemeanor possession of paraphernalia, guilty, 

all convicted, three years probation, 22 days jail 

sentence.  

 2014, Los Angeles, prostitution, misdemeanor, 

disposition unknown.  

 2017, misdemeanor, criminal contempt, out of 

Las Vegas.   

 2017, dismissed battery, out of Las Vegas.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

other questions?  
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  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  Ms. Vandernick, is there a reason why you 

failed to disclose this on your application?  

  MS. READUS:  I didn't have track of it, the 

track record she has.  I don't keep track of the stuff 

that she has.  But if I'd had it, I'd have put it on my 

application.  Half of it I don't remember.  We're going 

all the way back to '88.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  So this is Board Member 

Cortez again.  Is it my understanding that you failed to 

list it because you did not recall, based off of time, a 

while ago?  

  MS. READUS:  I just don't have the information.  

Now, she just read all those cases back to you guys.  I 

don't have that information that's written down anywhere 

to apply for a job.  I said, yes, I was convicted.  And 

I thought I did the best I could.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  So follow-up question.  

This is Board Member Cortez.  

  MS. READUS:  I thought you guys were the 

background check people for you to find out that stuff.  

That's why it isn't on my application.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you, ma'am.  

I have no further questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 
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questions?  

 Okay.  No other questions.  I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I motion to uphold the denial based on time, 

severity, lack of information, lack of disclosing 

criminal history.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I'll 

second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a second.  I 

have a motion.  I have a second.  All in favor, say 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  

Unfortunately, Mrs. Readus, you were denied, or your 

denial was upheld.  You may reapply in a year.  Thank 

you.  

 So at this point, we're going to go back to the 

items that we trailed.  Do you want to call the role 

call?  

  MR. INGRAM:  I could do that.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Let's call a 

roll call and swear in. 
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  MR. INGRAM:  All right.  As I call your name, 

if you'll just respond, please, for me.   

  Angelina Groom?  Angelina Groom?   

  Anybody that's on the call right now, please 

make sure your phone is muted until we call your name.  

Thank you.  

 So Juan Smith?  

  MS. READUS:  I don't know how you guys expect 

somebody to get their license if you guys don't give 

them a second chance.  I mean --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Ma'am, please get 

off the line.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Please put your phone on mute.  

  Okay.  We're going to try this again.  Angelina 

Groom, are you on the line?  

 Juan Smith, are you on the line?  

 Jason Lee?  

  MR. LEE:  Yes, sir.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Stay on the line, please.  

 Marlowe Madden?   

 MR. MADDEN:  Yes, sir.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Please stay on the line.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Sixto Morales?  

  MR. MORALES:  Yeah, I'm here. 
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  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  Please stay on the 

line.  

 Evelyn Vandernick?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  I'm here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Please stay on the line.  

 Scott Williams?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, I'm here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  Please stay on the 

line.  

 Lee Johnson?  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, I'm here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Sidney Moore?  

  MR. MOORE:  I'm here, yes.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

 Let's see.  That's everybody.  Okay.   

 Last call for Angelina Groom?  

 Last call for Juan Smith?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Do you want to take action 

on Groom and Smith, or do you want to trail them to the 

very end?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Let's trail them.  

  MR. INGRAM:  All right.  So that takes us to 

item number 36, Mr. Jason Lee.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board counsel, can 
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we have you swear in the new applicants on the line?  

 MR. DETMER:  It would be my pleasure.   

 For those who are about to testify, if you 

could please raise your right hand.  Do you hereby swear 

or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and 

nothing but the truth?  

 (Applicants were sworn/affirmed.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Lee, are you on the line, sir?  

  MR. LEE:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Can you 

confirm you're under oath?  

  MR. LEE:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Tell us a 

little bit about yourself, sir.  

  MR. LEE:  Well, ma'am, I am originally from 

Kalamazoo, Michigan.  All the criminal activity that 

I've ever done have been in Kalamazoo, Michigan.  I  

married and moved to California with my wife.  I lived 

there in California for approximately, maybe 10, 12 

years.  And then we moved two years ago to Las Vegas.   

  I am now in pursuit of a career in criminal 

justice.  I literally just got my associate's in August 

of last year.  I'm trying to get my life back together.  

I have a family.  I literally just took in two children 
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the day before yesterday to foster them until their 

mother can get her life back on track.  In order for me 

to be able to provide for them, I need to be able to 

procure a security license to be able to continue my 

career in the criminal justice field.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

Congratulations.  

  MR. LEE:  Thank you, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.   

Good afternoon, Mr. Lee. 

  MR. LEE:  You too, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Are you presently 

employed?  

  MR. LEE:  Yes, sir.  I employed as an online 

processor for the PP, PPP loan application.  It's a 

temporary contract through a company for these 

applications.  And I'm looking to -- I'm coming to the 

near end of that.  So I'm looking forward to being able 

to get into my career line.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  What would 

you plan on doing?  You referenced this application as a 

license.  Do you understand it's not a license, it's a 

work card to work for a licensee?  
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  MR. LEE:  Yes.  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  What do you plan 

on doing, if you get granted the work card, what do you 

plan on doing?  

  MR. LEE:  Becoming a security guard.  I'm 

trying to get into that field.  I have my eye on 

becoming either a manager or supervisor.  I have the 

experience, here again, living in California.  I have 

about four, five years worth of security experience.  So 

I was hoping to bring that over to Las Vegas and be able 

to use that to the best of my ability.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have any 

employment lined up?  

  MR. LEE:  Not at this time.  I would have had a 

job with Golden Entertainment, but since they went back 

and looked at my criminal history, I wasn't quite able 

to get a job with them.   

  I might also add to the Board that me being 

from Michigan, they are currently in a Clean Slate 

program, which is allowing all people that have felonies 

and misdemeanors and have kept their, you know, kept 

their nose clean for the last eight years, they're 

allowing them to be able to get their felony cleaned off 

of their, off their record.  And I am in the process and 

have been in the process of being able to contact legal 
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aid in Michigan to get that taken care of.  So it's just 

a waiting game for me on that end.  

 But, anyhow, I need to get a job.  I need to  

be able to get this card so can be able to secure 

employment here.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I'm good.  Thank 

you.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  

Question for Mr. Lee.  Mr. Lee, you said you worked in 

security for a number of years.  Do you hold a security 

card or license in California?  

  MR. LEE:  Yes, sir, I did hold one.  But since 

I no longer live in California, I had to let it lapse.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

further questions?  

 If there are no further questions, I'll 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I make a motion to grant the appeal.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

I second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 
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have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Congratulations, 

Mr. Lee.  Your work card has been approved.  You can 

reach out to the PILB office for next steps. 

  MR. LEE:  Thank you all.  I appreciate your 

time.  And have a good day.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  You too, sir.  Good 

luck.  

  MR. LEE:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Marlowe 

Madden, are you on the line?  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Are you aware 

you're under oath, sir?  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  Sir, 

tell us a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  I'm from Michigan as well.  

I caught an armed robbery back in 2013.  I was a kid.  I 

was a follower.  I was everything that you can call me, 

a coward.  I just felt like, you know, I didn't have any 

other life to go.  In the midst of that, I actually went 

to prison for three years.  I came home.  I did three 

years of parole.  I passed the parole, came home.  I had 
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two children, with three children.  In the midst of 

that, I had to leave them because I got shot.  In the 

midst of that, I had to wait for my brother to -- 

because he had a house for me, a home for me to move 

into.  And I've been healing up, and I feel like I'm to 

the point of my ability where I'm strong and I'm able to 

be a security guard.  And he have a job for me, too.  

Just I just got to have my guard card. 

  But other than that, like it's been eight years 

for me as well.  And I'm ready to change my life around 

and show my worthy, of me being a citizen.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  For Mr. Marlowe.  Or Mr. Madden.  I'm sorry.  

Could you give me a synopsis of your armed robbery, 

arrest and conviction.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  I was actually in the car, 

and I was in the midst of a hotdog.  I just messed a 

woman's purse.  And I emptied the purse right there.  

And it was like in the heat of the moment.  I actually 

gave the -- basically, threw the purse right out the 

window.  And I did it.  It's no -- I'm not taking up for 

my what I did or on any level.  I just, that's what I 

did.  I threw the purse right out the window, but I kept 
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the phone.  And when I kept the phone, they had a 

tracking device on the phone.  And that's how they found 

me with the phone.  But other than that, that was the 

only thing I did.   

  I'm not belittling like the crime or anything 

like, but that's what I did.  On every level, I cry 

every night about that.  You got to own up to your 

mistakes.  And I feel like that was a mistake.  I really 

was like following like.  You know, it ain't somebody 

else like way of saying I have to figure a way to eat.  

But other than that like, actually like that's not me.  

But I was a CNA at the time.  I really didn't have no 

reason.  I was a certified nurse.  I had no reason to do 

what I did.  But I was smoking marijuana.  I was 

gambling.  I was doing everything.  And I'd sit in the 

door.  I had children.  You know, other than that, it 

was like I was supposed to have been a father.  But 

instead of being a father, being a good person, I was 

being a follower.  I was hanging around people in my 

neighborhood that was doing everything.  I guess, I was 

a coward.  I was doing everything trying to fit in.   

  But now I'm to the point I show my true colors, 

say who I am.  Everybody, in an incident, they 

actually -- I got shot.  You know, I got, well, 

everything like in the midst of like telling people like 
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who I really am.  But in the midst of that, I deserve it 

all, you know.  I'm not crying about my life.  But other 

than that, though, I really want to change.  And I just 

want to change. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you, 

Mr. Madden.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

Mr. Madden.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I heard twice now that 

you've been shot.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You were in a group of 

people?  You were being robbed?  Explain that a little 

bit more clear.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Actually, I was shot by my father.  

And I actually, I came out last year, I told everyone I 

was bisexual.  In the midst of that, my dad, he shot me.  

He said he didn't raise me to be like that.  But in the 

midst of that, though, it was, you know, I took that.  

And my brother said, "I got a room for you.  You know, 

don't worry about it, brother.  You know, don't worry 

about it, I got you."  And he got me out of my 

situation, and so I can bring my family out here with 

me.  But other than that, I got blackballed out of my 
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family position.  And it's just, you know, I just need 

to make another family.  With my family life, as far as 

my children like, they still accept me.  My mother, she 

still accept me.  But as far as like several family 

members, they don't accept me anymore.  So it was I had 

to leave.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Since 

you've been out of prison and off parole, even since 

you've been out of prison, have you been working?  

  MR. MADDEN:  Actually, yes.  I work at Auto 

Zone now.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Is that here in 

Nevada?  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And how long have you 

lived in Nevada?  

  MR. MADDEN:  I've lived here for eight months 

now approximately.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have any jobs 

lined up here if you get a card?  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes, I do.  My brother actually 

have a -- he has an opening for me.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What does your brother 

do?  

  MR. MADDEN:  He does security.  He works with 
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Smith's security. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  You mean like 

the grocery store type?  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes, but he does security for the 

lot.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  All right.  

Thank you.  And, you know, bless your brother for taking 

you in.  That's nice. 

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes, I appreciate him all the way.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You got to commend him 

for that.  Thank you. 

  MR. MADDEN:  My sisters, too, as well.  Because 

it is not just him, it is my sisters and everybody, like 

everybody out here, like my mom out here, everybody, 

like they are rooting for me.  You know, they know I'm 

not a bad person or no devil.  It's just, you know, 

actually, you know, I'm a little too honest.  And I'm 

realizing that.  But you mention that, and I do got a 

past history.  And I don't want that to faze me on no 

level.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Madden, are you 

still doing any kind of drugs?   

  MR. MADDEN:  I actually smoke marijuana like if 

I don't have anything else to do on my recreational 

time.  But other than that, I don't do anything.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Do you ever 

plan on getting in a program, or have you been in 

programs?  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes, I have.  I was in a substance 

abuse program.  I did a volunteer program for passing 

out food.  But other than that, that's it as far as the 

volunteering I do, everything.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  No problem.  

Thank you.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions from the Board?  

 If there's no other questions, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move to grant the appeal, based on time and 

distance from the offense, and Mr. Madden's other trials 

and tribulations that he's been through and he's coming 

back strong.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I second the motion to approve the appeal, 

based on Mr. Madden's forthcoming information.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 
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  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sir, 

congratulations.  Your denial has been overturned.  You 

can reach out to the PILB office, and they'll tell you 

next steps to get your actual license.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Thank you.  Thank you.  Thank you 

so much, you guys.  I appreciate you guys for the 

opportunity.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes, you are very 

welcome, sir.  Thank you.  

  MR. MADDEN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So we're on agenda 

item number 38 now.  Mr. Morales, are you on the line?  

  MR. MORALES:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

Tell us a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. MORALES:  Well, I'm 43 years old.  I from 

Yuma, Arizona.  And I've worked construction pretty much 

my whole life and done security as well here in 

Las Vegas and in Laughlin in the past.  And, well, just 

recently with everything that's been going on and a lot 

of my -- the work I do, because I actually work in 

natural gas and petroleum, it's been shut down.  So I 

got back into the security business.  So right now, I'm 

working at the Longhorn and as an armed security guard 
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in the casino.  But I'm trying to get into the private 

sector as well, try to like basically broaden my horizon 

and stuff.  And, so.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, 

sir.  

 Board, are there any questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  Question for Mr. Morales.  Why did you fail to 

disclose two of your charges, one of them being a 

felony?  

  MR. MORALES:  No, I think, I put down -- was it 

the first time back in -- when I applied?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  The way that I understand 

it, the first you applied, you were denied.  

  MR. MORALES:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Because of the weapons 

charge.  But it shows that in 1995, you were arrested 

for assault.  And you did not disclose that.  And in 

1996, you were arrested for dangerous drug violation, a 

felony.  You did not disclose that until you received 

your denial.  

  MR. MORALES:  No, because the first time I -- 

the first time I did it, I was kind of young, and which 

was back in like two thousand something, or in the '90s.  

I can't remember.  So I kind of, my understanding was a 
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little bit, kind of on the dumber side versus for where 

my age is at right now.  And then what happened back in 

'95, the assault, I was actually a minor.  I wasn't 

quite 19.  So I went ahead and put that down.  Which I 

don't know the mathi'cal part of it right now.  Even to 

this day, I believe, I was actually a minor at the time.  

So I went ahead and put that down, anything that I've 

been arrested for.  

 As far as the drug charges, even those, I 

shouldn't have even had back then.  Because at the time, 

if I remember correctly, I was just shy of my 18th 

birthday when I was arrested for those.  And when I 

tried to get the motion to suppress the evidence that 

was found in the house -- because I moved in with my 

buddy.  And his uncle was on probation.  His probation 

officer came looking for him.  I left them inside the 

house.  And they found drugs inside the house that were 

not in my room or anything, but in his room.  They ended  

up, I was the only one that got charged for that.  So.  

 I mean I know there's really no excuse for 

anything or anything like that, but that's the honest 

truth on that as to why I didn't put it down.  Quite 

honestly, I just -- it's like my way of understanding 

things were a little bit different from what they are 

today, you know, as far as disclosing things.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-02-21 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

143 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Think, Mr. Morales. 

  Follow-up question for Chief Irizarry.  Do you 

have the fingerprint results back?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  Yes, I do.  To 

elaborate all that Mr. Morales has stated, he 

self-disclosed the '95, the '96, and the '96 offenses.  

When his fingerprints came back, none of that came back 

on his fingerprint report.  It's listed on your report 

because that's something he's reported after the fact.  

I did check with Arizona, and I was unable to find any 

of these charges, no counties in Arizona, but he 

mentioned them on his own as possible.  But because he 

was a juvenile, he may have been charged as a juvenile 

at the time.   

  The 1998 offense, the reason why he was denied, 

which was a gross misdemeanor, CCW in a vehicle, that 

was, it was a CCW in a vehicle, with reckless driving 

and a DUI.  The DUI was dismissed.  The reckless driving 

was dismissed.  He was convicted of the CCW in a 

vehicle.  He had 36 months probation.  His firearms 

restrictions were -- he had firearms restrictions that 

expired in July of 2001.  And since then, he has no 

firearms restrictions since July 2001.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. MORALES:  May I say something?  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-02-21 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

144 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sure.  

  MR. MORALES:  Okay.  Now, on those, on those 

charges, yes, I was kind of dumb and, again, extremely 

stupid.  Since then, I have not been in any kind of 

trouble or anything other than your usual, you know, 

speeding ticket here and there, you know.  Which, again, 

I know that those aren't good, either.  But I have held 

armed positions while in security since then, too, as 

well.  But I mean what I'm just trying to say is that, 

you know, I was kind of young, and I was extremely 

stupid.  And, you know, some of the things I did 

weren't, weren't the smartest.  But, you know, I've been 

clean ever since, so.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, 

sir. 

  Board, are there any other questions?  

 Okay.  If there's no other questions, I'll 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I'll move to grant the appeal, based on time and 

distance from the charges.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second? 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I will second the motion to approve.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay, sir.  

Congratulations.  You have been awarded your work card.  

Please contact the PILB for next steps.  

  MR. MORALES:  Okay, ma'am.  So what do I do, 

call the Las Vegas office?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes.  Oh, I'm sorry.  

I'm getting a -- they will call you tomorrow.  

  MR. MORALES:  Okay.  All right.  Sounds good.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. MORALES:  All right.  Thank you.  And 

that's it?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes, sir.  

  MR. MORALES:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  

 Item number, agenda item number 40.  Evelyn 

Vandernick, are you on the line?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  Yes, I am. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, ma'am.  

Could you please -- or are you aware you're under oath?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  Yes, I do.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Could you 

please tell us a little bit about yourself.  
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  MS. VANDERNICK:  Yes.  I am 20 years old.  This 

is my first job kind of interview thing.  I recently had 

a kid.  I did stillbirth and I lost my son.  I'm getting 

married to a security guard myself.  And he has like a 

thing for security in like storage unit stuff.  So it 

really is a good interest for me to get into.  I have a 

juvenile past.  Other than that, I really haven't done 

much.  I'm young.  I'm 20.  And, yeah.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Board, are there any questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

Can you explain, Mrs. Vandernick, can you please explain 

what happened here in February 2020, just a little over 

a year ago, with the CCW?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  I was -- that's for carrying a 

concealed weapon.  It was my fiance's firearm.  I had it 

on me for protection because of the area I live in.  But 

the state has dropped the case after I did my time 

sentence, and because they said no intent for harmful 

use.  And I just really had it on me as safety.  And the 

security jacket I had on covered it.  So, yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Why did you get 

stopped, or how did that happen?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  Oh, well, I had gotten stopped 

because I was -- my dad came down for our wedding, and 
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he had like gave it to me as a gift, the car.  And I 

didn't know that he had a warrant under his name.  And 

his left taillight was out.  And I was making a 

left-hand turn.  And, but, yeah, so.  And, yeah.  I was 

like, ah, why didn't he tell me about that?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Was this your 

car or your dad's car?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  He had just gifted it to me.  

So it was his, still his legally, but it would have been 

mine.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Was it registered to 

him at the time?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  Yes, ma'am.  I mean yes, sir.  

Sorry.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where did you have the 

weapon?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  It was on -- it was in the 

holster on my hip.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  What do you do now?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  Currently, I have an interest 

into starting my own business, because I have a 

managerial and associate's.  So like I'm working on 

getting my business license and working with my husband 

in his clothing brand.  My husband has a job lined up 
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already with me at his company, so when I get approved.  

But right now, currently, this would be my first like 

job position.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So in your 

statement earlier, you said that you had it underneath  

your security jacket.  Was that your jacket?  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  No, it was his jacket.  He was 

in jail at the time for traffic tickets.  And I was 

going to see, I was on my way to see him in visitation.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  Yes, ma'am.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez for a question for Chief Irizarry, Madam 

Irizarry.  Am I reading this correctly, that the arrest 

and conviction was not disclosed?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Chief Irizarry.  Correct, she 

did not disclose.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Thank you.  That's all my 

questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?   

  Okay.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll 

make a motion to deny the appeal.  The reason is for 

time, distance, severity, and for nondisclosure.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I will second the motion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So at this 

time, Ms. Vandernick, you did not -- or the denial was 

upheld.  Sorry.  You may reapply in a year.  

  MS. VANDERNICK:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  

  Mr. Williams, are you on the line, Mr. Scott 

Williams?   

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I'm sorry.  Yes, I am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  Are 

you aware you're under oath?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, I am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Mr. Williams, 

tell us a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, I'm 53 years old.  I'm on 

disability, so just looking for part-time work.  The 

company that wanted to hire me was willing to work with 

the hours and stuff that I could do.  Just changing my 

life, you know.  I found the lord Jesus.  And just 
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really working hard and changing my life.  I'm finding 

that it's understandable but sad that my past from 30  

some years ago is holding me back.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

questions for Mr. Williams?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I do have questions for Mr. Williams.  

Mr. Williams, what type of security work are you 

planning to go into?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Just working for Securitas at 

certain job sites.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Would that be an armed or 

unarmed position?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Unarmed.  I have no desire to be 

armed.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Then, you talked 

about things from your past 30 years ago being held 

against you or holding you back.  Tell me about the  

trespassing three years ago.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  That's kind of a long 

story, and I'll try to make it short.  I was living in 

an assisted living facility, and one of the other 

residents had pushed me, which got me angry, and I 

chased her.  There were some staff members there that 

did not like me because I got them in trouble for 
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sleeping during the night shift, because I was not 

getting my medication.  And just turned out all to be a 

lie.  But the offer that was made up to me was in my 

better half to plead guilty and not stay in jail and 

fight it.  And even the judge had talked to me about 

that.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  What was the 

original charge?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I'm trying to remember, sir, and 

I'm sorry.  My memory's not the best.  I think, there 

was many charges, and a lot were dropped.  I know 

trespassing was one.  And, I think, assault was one.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you, 

Mr. Williams. 

  Chief Irizarry, can you expand on it?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Certainly.  Chief Irizarry.  In 

2018, the charges were burglary, second-degree burglary 

attempt, felony, which was dropped.  Assault third 

degree, misdemeanor, that one was reduced.  There were 

two trespassing.  Another charge was crimes against a 

person, four counts.  Trespassing a dwelling, felony.  

It was deferred, then dismissed, and then reduced to a 

misdemeanor, yeah, misdemeanor trespassing.  Assault, 

knowingly cause injury, misdemeanor, dismissed.  Threats  

against a person, harassment, misdemeanor, dismissed.  
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And then one, two, three, four counts of assault 

menacing, misdemeanors, all were dismissed.   

  So on all of those charges, the only one he was 

actually convicted of was the lesser trespassing 

misdemeanor offense.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.  No further 

questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Can I comment on that 

trespassing, please?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  No, sir.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any 

questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  If no questions, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move to deny the appeal, based on time and 

distance from the incidents, severity of them.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion, and 

I have -- do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 
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  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Sir, your denial has 

been upheld.  You may reapply in a year.  Thank you.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Mr. Lee Johnson, are 

you on the line, sir?  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  Are you 

aware you are under oath, sir?  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Excuse me?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are you aware you're 

under oath?  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you.  Mr. Lee, 

tell us a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. JOHNSON:  I'm 50 years old.  I just turned 

50 January 29th.  I've been living in Las Vegas, Nevada 

for almost, almost two years.  I'm down here since 

July 11, 2019.  Worked at Good Will for quite -- start 

September 19th.  And I've been working there since the 

pandemic, the coronavirus.  I've been laid off since 

last year, March.  So I've just been really getting 

unemployment.  And I applied for Avalon Security, where 

my niece worked at.  And she's telling me that they 

would help me, you know, find me a -- you know, well, 
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she can help me find a job.  So I applied.  I got 

denied.   

  So now I'm here at the Board, you know.  But 

with my history, I've been out of jail almost 19 years 

now.  July 2nd of this year it would be 19 years that 

I've been out.  I had a rough life of growing up with my 

parents, with my mom being on drugs.  And so that got me 

out in the streets to sell drugs to make money for 

myself, for a living for myself, because I was put out 

of my house, and I was raised with another family.  

 So I started doing, selling drugs and stuff.  

Like I got caught up so many times.  So I told myself.   

I went to work.  You know, and I've been in jail.  And 

that was a place that I never did like.  And when I went 

to the penitentiary one time, that was my last time.  

And that's been like almost 19 years ago now.  I haven't 

been back to jail, no time, no, no, no nothing.   

 And I'm out here and trying to change my life.  

I have 10 kids.  I have three sets of twins.  I have 

seven grandbabies.  I'm living with my son right now.  

You know, we're helping each other out.  He has three 

kids.  He has a set of twins and his older boy.  So we 

are working things out.  So I told him, said we'll apply 

and, you know, to get your license so we can make a 

better employment, and might move out, somewhere to 
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live.  Because we live in an apartment building.  And 

I'd prefer for me and him to have a better relationship 

and to raise the kids.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

 Board, are there any questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

Mr. Johnson.  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Is there a reason that 

you did not disclose this felony arrest?  

  MR. JOHNSON:  No.  All of my things that I did, 

I done my time for it.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, but on your 

application, is there a reason why, in your original 

application, you did not write in there your previous 

arrest?  

  MR. JOHNSON:  I didn't really know the date of 

the arrest.  I just probably knew the year of it.  I 

didn't know the exact date that I went to jail.  But I 

just know probably the year that I went and when I got 

out, which is probably 2002 or 2003 I went in, and got 

out maybe 2004 or 2005, within that time.  And I felt 

within that time, when I applied, when I didn't put the 

exact information on there, I didn't think that it would 

come back on me like that, because I've been out almost 
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19 years.  So I feel that, you know, it was so for my 

background. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  You know, 

it's -- I just don't know, quite understand what you 

mean.  You didn't remember?  Hold on.  Just -- 

Mr. Johnson, it's all right.  I'll strike that out 

there. 

  And, Investigator Saladino, he said he put 

something down on the application.  

  MR. JOHNSON:  On the application, that I put 

down for --   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Sir, Mr. Johnson, hold 

on.  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  

  MR. SALADINO:  In regards to the applicant's 

application, he did not disclose on the application.  

However, once he was denied, he did put that in his 

appeal letter that he was arrested for a felony selling.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  Mr. Johnson, again, I need some clarification.  

Why did you fail to disclose it until after the denial?  

I believe, the application clearly states to list all 

criminal history.  So I'm just kind of curious as to why 

you still did not list until after it was denied.  
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  MR. JOHNSON:  I did not, I didn't know.  I just 

filled the application out the best way I can.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer 

again.  Are you currently employed with Avalon?  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, I am.  Right now, I'm just 

laid off.  She did not fire me or anything, all due 

because it was temporary.  And once if I get my guard 

card back, she told me to call her and I'm more than 

welcome to come back.  She said, "Since you've been 

temporary laid off right now," she told me to draw my 

unemployment and wait for the license, what I'm doing 

now, and let her know if I get my license back, then 

says I'm more than welcome to go back to work with her, 

her and her husband.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Investigator Saladino, 

have we had a problem with Avalon Security?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino, for the 

record.  We have not had any issues with Avalon prior, 

prior to this.  However, when the applicant sent in his 

appeal letter, he put on there that he was working for 

Avalon.  When I reached out to Avalon, there was some 

confusion with the qualifying agent and his office 

manager.  When I talked to the office manager, she was 

unaware that she was supposed to keep a roster of 
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employees.  I asked her specifically about Mr. Johnson.  

She said that he is a really good employee.  And I told 

her, you know, "Had we known that he was on your roster, 

you would have gotten the denial letter stating that his 

application had been denied., where you're dealing with 

a roster."   

  So they were unaware, I guess, of how the 

roster worked.  Since then, they have added all their 

employees onto the roster.  So that's been fixed.  

However, they did receive a violation for not having 

Mr. Johnson on the roster.  And I don't think they're 

going to have any issues moving forward, now they 

understand how the roster works and they're able to get 

into their portal.  The office manager, when I asked her 

about Mr. Johnson, she stated, you know, "While he was 

in provisional status, he was a really good employee, 

and, you know, we did just want to lay him off."  And at 

the Board meeting, they're looking forward to having him 

come back, because he was a good employee while he was 

working.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  To follow up again, 

Investigator Saladino, was Avalon issued a citation?  

Was there a cost involved?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Yes.  They were issued a 

violation for not having him disclosed on the roster, 
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which is a $25 fine.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Did they pay the $25?  

  MR. SALADINO:  It's been issued.  We're just 

waiting for the monies to come in.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  How long ago was it 

issued?  

  MR. SALADINO:  It was issued March 1st.  The 

reason I waited a while to issue it was I wanted to make 

sure they had gotten in compliance with the rest of the 

roster before issuing that citation for the roster 

issues.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Very well.  

  Mr. Johnson, this is still Board Member 

Gronauer.  I just have a problem with -- this Board, 

it's always had a history of when you don't disclose, 

you usually don't get approved.  So I'm just letting you 

know that you have to read this carefully and fill in 

all the blanks and make sure you know what you're doing 

all the time.  Thank you.  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

other questions?   

  Okay.  At this time, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer.  I'll make a motion to deny the appeal of 
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Mr. Lee Johnson.  And the main reason is we have a 

history of nondisclosure for making a denial.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I will second the motion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Mr. Johnson, your 

denial was upheld.  And you may reapply again, sir, in a 

year.  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Please disclose 

everything at that time.  Thank you.  

  MR. JOHNSON:  Bye-bye.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Mr. Moore?  

  MR. MOORE:  Yes, I'm here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  Are 

you aware you're under oath?  

  MR. MOORE:  Yes, I am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Please tell 

us a little bit about yourself.  

  MR. MOORE:  Yes.  I grew up in Reno, Nevada, 

went to Reno schools, graduated from Reno High School.  
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I went to work for the Nugget in downtown Reno.  I 

started in 1985.  I retired in 2005.  I had some very 

close friends that lived in Oregon.  So when I retired, 

I moved to Oregon and moved to Corvallis, where I had 

some friends that owned a mobile home park.  So I moved 

in there.  I bought a small fifth-wheel.  And they asked 

me if I would work a little bit at night and kind of 

keep my eye on the trailer park.  It was in a mobile 

home community.  So I said, "Fine."  I went to the 

sheriff's office, and I received a carry permit, which 

lasted, I believe, four years.  

 In the meantime, I'd got in the habit of 

carrying my pistol with me in a backpack on the front 

seat, on the floor of the passenger seat.  

 And, anyway, from there, my sister, who lives 

in Reno, she got breast cancer, and she wanted her big 

brother to be closer.  So I move the back to Reno.  And 

I went to work for Allied Security.  And I worked for  

them for five days.  I had a nice job.  The people were 

wonderful.  It was great.  I got along with everybody.  

I enjoyed the work.  And I was kind of bored because I 

hadn't worked in about 15 years.  

 So, anyway, then I got a call from my boss at 

Allied that said that I couldn't receive my police card 

or my work card because of the weapons charge.  
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 So that's who I am up-to-date.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Board, are there any 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

Mr. Moore, what have you been doing since that time?  

  MR. MOORE:  I got a job.  I'm working part-time 

at Safeway up on McCarran.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  

  MR. MOORE:  I've been working about 15 hours a 

week.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  This 

offense, the way I read it, occurred in 2004.  

  MR. MOORE:  Yes, sir.  It was quite a while 

ago.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, yeah.  So what 

have you been doing in the past 17 years?  

  MR. MOORE:  Well, for 15 years, I was up in 

Oregon.  I was playing golf and fishing and enjoying my 

retirement.  Then, when my sister got sick, I moved back 

to Reno.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  No problem.  

  MR. MOORE:  She's got breast cancer.  And so I 

try to stay with her as often as I possibly can.  The 

cancer is in remission.  So hope to God she stays 

healthy.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  This is Board 

Member Gronauer again.  What do you plan on doing with a 

work card here?  

  MR. MOORE:  I'd like to go back to work for 

Allied.  They were great to me.  I enjoyed the job,  

worked with some good people.  Everything was going fine 

until the situation with the denial of my work card.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  So that's why you only 

worked for them for five days?  

  MR. MOORE:  I worked for Allied for about five 

days, and that's when I was told that my work card was 

denied.  So I had to give all my uniforms back.  And I 

needed a job because I live on Social Security.  So what 

I did was I went to -- I had a chance to work for 

Safeway.  So I figured, in the interim, while I'm 

waiting to hopefully get my work card, that'll, you 

know, help keep me afloat.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Absolutely.  Thank you, 

sir.  

  MR. MOORE:  You're very welcome.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  Mr. Moore, you disclosed the DUIs.  Why did you 

fail to disclose the weapons charge of 2004?  

  MR. MOORE:  I didn't disclose it.  I was 

arrested on a DUI, and I had my pistol in my backpack, 
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which was on the floor in the front seat of the 

passenger side of the vehicle. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  I 

believe, Investigator Saladino may be able to give me 

clarification.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino, for the 

record.  The applicant did disclose both of the DUI 

arrests.  When the fingerprint report came back with the 

2004, he did have a disclosure for the driving under the 

influence, carrying a loaded firearm in public.  But 

when I talked to the applicant, you know, I said, "You 

listed these DUIs.  What happened with the firearm?"  

And he said stated, just like he did on the record, that 

that was in his backpack, it was legally owned at the 

time.  However, because he got pulled over with the DUI, 

found the firearm in the backpack.  He then stated about 

how he had a custom holster and so forth.  Again, it 

legally owned when he got caught with the DUI.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So did he have -- 

this is Board Member Nixon.  Did he have a CCW for 

Oregon?  Or wasn't he in Oregon?   

  MR. SALADINO:  That was in California. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  California.  Okay. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Yeah, it happened in California.  
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I don't know if he had a CCW or not.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So what was the 

actual charge, then; was it just a DUI, or was it the 

DUI with a loaded firearm?  

  MR. SALADINO:  The actual charge was DUI and 

then carrying a loaded firearm in a public place.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Are there any other 

questions?  

 Okay.  If there's no other questions, I'll take 

a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move to grant the appeal.   

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board --  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I'm sorry.  Based on the 

distance from the conviction.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I second the motion to approve.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  Sir, 

Mr. Moore, your work card has been approved.  The PILB 

will contact you with next steps.  Congratulations.  

  MR. MOORE:  I appreciate it so very much.  

Thank you to all you folks for your help.  Thanks again.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Number 44 we do not 

have fingerprints on.  Is that correct?  And we did 

number 45. 

  (The Reporter indicate an inability to hear.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  I was just informing Chair that we 

could go back to items number 27, Angelina Groom, and 

number 30, Juan Smith, if they so choose.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So we'll go 

ahead and move to item number 27.  Angelina Groom, are 

you on the line?  Calling for Angelina Groom?  

 Okay.  With her not being on the line, I'll 

take a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I motion to uphold the denial.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I 

will second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  And then you 

said 30.  Mr. Smith, Mr. Juan Smith, are you on the 

line?  Calling again for Mr. Smith?  

 Okay.  With Mr. Smith not being on the line,  
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I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I am motioning to uphold the denial.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  It's Board Member Brown.  

I'll second the motion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, for the record, both of 

the satellite lines went dead again.  So we're trying to 

use the large speaker in the middle of the room.  We'll 

do our best to speak at the microphone.  If you have 

trouble hearing us, please let us know.  

  THE REPORTER:  You know I will.  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So do we want to 

move, then, to item number 46?   

  Okay.  We are at item number 46, Starside 

Security & Investigation.  Is Mr. Robert Coventry and 

Yvonne Coventry on the line, please?   

  MRS. COVENTRY:  Yes, this is Yvonne Coventry.  

  MR. COVENTRY:  And Robert Coventry.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Have you guys been sworn in?  

  MR. COVENTRY:  We have not.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-02-21 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

168 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Counsel, could you 

please swear them in.  

  MR. DETMER:  It would be my pleasure.  For the 

record, Mike Detmer.   

  Mr. and Mrs. Coventry, if you could please 

raise your right hand.  Do you hereby swear or affirm to 

tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 

truth?  

  MR. COVENTRY:  I do. 

  MRS. COVENTRY:  I do.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. COVENTRY:  We've left for the closed 

session, please.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  

Madam Chair, if it is the desire to move into a closed 

session, that has to be done with a motion by a member 

of the Board and then action to do so.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So we have a 

request for a closed session.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer.  I make a motion to go into a closed session 

at the request of the applicants.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I 
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second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  MR. INGRAM:  So at -- I'm sorry.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  No, I was going to 

ask you.   

  MR. INGRAM:  I was going to say, the motion 

passed? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yeah, oh, the motion 

passes.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So at this time, those of you that 

have been informed about the closed session, if you'll 

go ahead and hang up from this call.   

  Those of you that are still on this number, 

that are not involved in the closed session, please stay 

on the call.  You'll hear some silence for a while.  We 

will come back on the record for the Board to vote on 

this item.  So, again, please stay on the call.  

 Those of you that have been given specific 

instructions, please go ahead and hang up, and we'll 

meet you on the other side.  

  MR. DETMER:  This is Mike Detmer.  As a matter 

of procedure, I believe that the statute requires that 

the reason as to the basis for the closed session, 
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unless I'm mistaken, it is for consideration of 

competence and/or character.  Is that is correct, from 

the Board, as far as the basis to go into closed 

session? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  That's correct. 

  MR. DETMER:  I thank the Board. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you. 

* * * * * 

(A closed session of the meeting was held, after which 

the meeting was then opened back up to the public and 

resumed as follows.) 

* * * * * 

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, are you back?   

  THE REPORTER:  Yes, I am.  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mary Klemme, are you back? 

  MS. KLEMME:  Present.  

  MR. INGRAM:  All right.  And Mr. and 

Mrs. Coventry?  

  MR. COVENTRY:  We're here. 

  MRS. COVENTRY:  We're here, yes.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you. 

  So we're back on line.  I'll entertain a motion 

on agenda item number 46.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 
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Cortez.  I'm motioning to approve the license being 

requested by both Mr. and Mrs. Coventry.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  Okay.  Hang on. 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  Just 

for clarification, the motion is to approve a corporate 

private investigator and private patrolman license as 

well as hold the individual private investigator and 

private patrol licenses in abeyance?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  That is correct.  

  MR. INGRAM:  With corporate officers. 

  MR. DETMER:  With the corporate officers to be 

approved, that being Mr. Coventry and Mrs. Coventry?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  That is correct.  My 

apologies.  

  MR. DETMER:  It was a long paragraph.  I 

completely understand.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So we have a motion.  

Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  

We have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  So congratulations, 
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Mr. and Mrs. Coventry.  Your motion has been approved 

unanimously.  

  MR. COVENTRY:  Thank you very much. 

  MRS. COVENTRY:  Thank you very much.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you. 

  Now we're on item number 47.  Director Ingram 

for item number 47.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Hi, Shannon.  For the record, 

Kevin Ingram.   

  I'm going to read this agenda item so we 

understand exactly where we're at:  Pursuant to NRS 

648.020, subsection 3, the members of the Board shall 

elect a Chair of the Board from amongst its members by 

majority vote.  After the election, the Chair shall hold 

office for a term of two years beginning on July 1st of 

each year.  Board members may nominate candidates to 

assume the role of Chair to be followed by a vote.  

Since a vacancy has occurred in the office of the Chair, 

with the passing of Ray Flynn, the members of the Board 

shall elect a Chair from amongst its members for the 

remainder of his term expiring on June 30th, 2022.   

  So this is not a full two-year term.  This is 

for the remainder of Mr. Flynn's term that expires 

June 30 of 2022.  

 I have two nominations for the position of the 
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Chair, one being that of Acting Chair Tammy Nixon, and 

that of Board Member Rick Brown.  

 At this time, we can open the voting for this 

position.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I want to be nominated, 

then.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Are you nominating yourself? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Hell, yeah. 

  MR. INGRAM:  I can take more nominations.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  There you go. 

  MR. INGRAM:  So now we have a nomination for 

Robert Gronauer.  Do I have any other nominations?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I just want to see if we are motioning, or can 

I just vote?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Oh, you're ready to vote.  You 

don't want me to run through the position? 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  No, that's okay. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So we now have three 

members that are running for Board Chair.  So I'll hold 

my hand over each person's head.  Got a show of hands. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You know, you didn't 

ask if either one of them have that kind of time to do 

that.  Or I could do it.  And that's the way I look at 

it.  I don't want to put no more pressure on her, if she 
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travels a little more.  That's the only way I looked at 

it, and anything else.  You know, and I don't know her 

position as far as travel or anything else.  So that's 

the reason I just said, well, I'll just put my name in 

there.  So we can do whatever you want.  But I took it 

very serious.  I took it very serious.  I didn't know if 

you had an obligation here.  So I don't know where they 

came from.  All right. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, let's do this.  Let's have 

each of the individuals that are interested in running 

for the Board go ahead and give us a little overview of 

why they'd like to be the Chairman of the Board.  And 

we'll hear a little bit from each of the candidates.  

And then we'll move on to the voting.  Does that sound 

fair?  

 Okay.  So why don't you start it off.  Did you 

want to go ahead and add anything else to your 

statement?   

 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Again, record of 

experience and involvement in boards, being the past 

Chairman of the Board the Housing Authority, the 

Las Vegas Housing Authority, ran a law enforcement 

agency, and Las Vegas Constable's Office --   

 (The Reporter indicated an inability to hear.) 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Here's the 
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deal.  Okay.  And I'm serious.  I would take it.  Only I 

was worried about Tammy, and I didn't discuss with you.  

And I actually didn't know about the nominations.   

That's the true story.  Somewhere I must have missed 

that one, while I was talking too much last time.  So 

here's the deal.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I think, you left early 

last time we met. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Well, I sent, I thought, I sent a 

follow-up email, also. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Oh, okay. 

  MR. INGRAM:  But that's okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Anyway, and the only 

thing I'm saying, I had the breadth of experience as far 

as running a lot of boards.  I was the 

secretary-treasurer for Westcare for ten years.  I was 

on the Nevada senior law enforcement, no, senior law 

practice where we take care of a lot of seniors.  I was 

the secretary-treasurer for that.  I ran a law 

enforcement agency, being the Constable's Office in 

Las Vegas.  Chairman of the Housing Authority in 

Las Vegas for four years.  I just have a breadth of 

experience in all these areas.  

 However, I was just worried that some people 
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didn't have the time to go ahead and move forward.  I 

don't challenge anybody's experience.  I just challenge 

the time that's available.  And I have the time 

available, because I have enough people to take care of 

what I need to take care of.  

 That's it.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I am one of the newer Board members.  I have no 

experience running the Board.  So, I think, it would 

probably be best for me to withdraw my nomination, my 

self-nomination.  I would like to withdraw my 

self-nomination.  I put my nomination in because I did 

not know if any of the other Board members were going 

to.  I wanted to make sure we had somebody to run the 

position, didn't know if anybody else wanted it or not.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Sure. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I'm going to withdraw my 

self-nomination.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Fair enough.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  My name is Tammy 

Nixon.  I have been on the Board now for two years.  I 

have no board experience when it comes to running an 

actual board, as you could probably tell during the last 

two meetings.  But definitely I'm interested in the 

position.  I take a great deal of honor about being on 
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the Board, as well as being a part of the industry, and 

like the idea of being able to influence how we do 

business as an industry.  

 So that's why it becomes so important to me to 

be on the Board, and would like to run for the 

Chairperson.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Excellent.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Mr. Ingram, I'm going to 

be part of the team and just go ahead and change.  I'd 

like to put my name in the hat, if that's okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  So this is Board 

Member Cortez.  While I was just appointed to this Board 

last year, I do have -- I am a founding board member of 

Juvenile Probation Officers Association.  I was the 

treasurer and board member for 11, 10, 11 years.  I'm 

very familiar with board meetings.  I familiar with 

Robert's Rules.  I could use some brushing up, but I am 

pretty familiar, and I'm comfortable with running board 

meetings.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Counsel Detmer, in reviewing 

NRS 648.060 -- okay.  Shannon, we're going to sidebar 

here just a minute.  

  (There was a discussion off the record.)   

  MR. DETMER:  Okay.  Shannon, Mike Detmer for 
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the record.  We're back on the record.   

  And just for clarification, this was just a 

sidebar between counsel and the Executive Director.  And 

with that, I submit. 

  THE REPORTER:  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So we have three 

individuals interested in the position of Chair.  

Normally, we're a five-member Board.  We do have one 

vacancy right now.  And in communication with the 

Governor's Office, it's been quite some time that we've 

been waiting for this position to be filled.  

 So as the Executive Director, I feel it's in 

the best interest of the Board to move forward with the 

election of a Chair, not knowing how much longer we're 

going to be without a Board member.  Okay.  So I just 

want to put that on the record that normally it would be 

five individuals voting.  We're voting with four.  Okay.  

 So at this time, we'll take a vote.  All those 

in favor -- and I'll start here with left to right.  All 

those in favor of Board Member Katherine Cortez serving 

the remainder of the Chair --   

  MR. DETMER:  And I'm sorry to interrupt.  But, 

I think, we still have to follow the rules of procedure, 

that being a motion from somebody on the Board and a 

second by a somebody there, of the Board as well.  I'm 
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not familiar with the procedure if it would be somebody 

other than a Board can.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.    

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Do you need a motion?  

  MR. INGRAM:  So the Chair -- you have to just 

do a motion? 

  MR. DETMER:  Yeah.  

  MR. INGRAM:  You actually need to call for the 

vote. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So we're on 

agenda item number 47.  I'm calling for a motion 

concerning Board Member Cortez, right, for Chairman.  

  MR. DETMER:  So, I think, you've done one other 

election, maybe two, and it was never -- there's never a 

great way of doing it.  So I apologize for not having a 

set procedure for the Board.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Shall we do all 

three? 

  MR. DETMER:  No.   

  MR. INGRAM:  Because it has to be --  

  MR. DETMER:  Right.  So, I believe, that we 

move to the candidate, in which the Chairwoman asked for 

a motion, and if there is no motion, then we move to the 

next candidate.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  
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  MR. DETMER:  Then seconds and then.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Why don't we 

just withdraw?  Okay.  I'm going to just withdraw.  

That's it.  So basically that's it.  Okay?  And you all 

figure it out from there.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  It's the same way.  

  MR. DETMER:  I don't know why that would 

change.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So based on 

the most recent, I move for a motion to -- do I say 

between us two, or?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Make a motion that we 

vote for a Chairman of the Board.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Can she make a motion that they 

vote for Chairman, if they would be asking for votes, 

and then the --   

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I'm going to make things real easy.  I am 

going, therefore, to withdraw, leaving Board Member 

Nixon for the remaining term.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  If 

anybody wants to run for Chair, please don't let the  

confusion of procedure sideline you.  

  (There was discussion off the record.) 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-02-21 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

181 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

I forgot who I was.  Okay.  And the motion is that we 

now have a vote for who's the Chairman of the Board of 

the PILB to fill until the end of Ray Flynn's term.  

  MR. DETMER:  That's where we were.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And I add in 

that motion that we allow Tammy Nixon to be the Board 

Chairman.  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  And I, Board Member 

Cortez, will second that motion to allow Board Member 

Nixon to remain as Chair for the remainder term until 

June 30 of 2022.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  We have a motion.  

We have a second.  All in favor, say "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Congratulations, me. 

Thank you.  Okay.   

  MR. INGRAM:  The motion passed. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Oh, the motion 

passes, for the record.  Board Member Nixon has been 

appointed as Chair.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Item number 48. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Item number 48.  

Board comment and future agenda items, for possible 

action.  Okay.  So Board comment and future agenda 

items.  Do we have any?   



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-02-21 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

182 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  Okay.  So next we move to the next item.  So 

the next item is agenda item number 49.  This is another 

opening for public comment.   

  Do we have, from the member of the general 

public, if you have any comment on any matter appearing 

on the agenda that you would like, or not on the agenda 

that you'd like to bring to the attention of the Board?  

Anybody in the south?  

  MR. WHITFIELD:  Yes, I have a comment.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Yes, sir.  Could you 

please identify yourself.  

  MR. WHITFIELD:  Yes, my name is William 

Whitfield, current PPP holder, license number 2407B.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Please go forward, 

sir.  

  MR. WHITFIELD:  I'm sorry?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Please go forward.  

  MR. WHITFIELD:  Oh.  Yes.  Thank you.  Thank 

you.  To members of the Board, I would like to just 

mention that what are the possibility of individuals 

that are becoming managing members of the company up 

under the Q and A, could they be under the same 

background scrutiny as the PPP holder goes through, in 

order to become a managing member.  

  MR. DETMER:  Okay.  This is public comment as 
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opposed to --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Can't make a decision.  

  MR. BOARD:  I'm sorry? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  We can't make a 

decision, right? 

  MR. WHITFIELD:  No, no, no, no.  No, I'm not 

looking for a decision.  I just wanted to insert for the 

record if that is something that can be discussed at 

another time.  

  MR. DETMER:  This is just for public comment.  

He provided comment.  The Board can't take that into 

consideration today.  But as of now, it's just public 

comment.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  So, sir, 

unfortunately, we can't answer that question for you.  I 

would refer you to the licensing office.  

  MR. WHITFIELD:  Will do.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Anyone else down 

south?  

 Okay.  Any public comment from up north?  

 Okay.  So no public comment.  

 Do I have a motion to adjourn?  That's the end 

of the agenda.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we adjourn the meeting.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I want discussion.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member 

Cortez.  I second to adjourn.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  I 

have a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Okay.  The motion 

passes.  Thank you.  We're adjourned.  Thank you. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thanks, Shannon.  We'll see you 

tomorrow. 

  THE REPORTER:  Yes.  Okay.  Thank you.  Good 

afternoon, everybody. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIR NIXON:  Thank you. 

* * * * * 

(The teleconference meeting adjourned at 2:14 p.m.) 

-oOo- 
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